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The history of a Town or hamlet can often be traced in the houses built by its founders.  These houses 
are often neglected, destroyed either deliberately or by accident, or become so altered by renovations or 
additions that the original historic structure can no longer be discerned.  Although such is the case for 
many of the oldest homes in East Quogue whose history is summarized here, many of East Quogue’s 
historic resources remain today and continue to grace and inform our current community. 
 
The place names in a hamlet also reflect its history, particularly the family names of its early inhabitants, 
and may be modified over the years.  Such is the case in East Quogue, where many of the place names 
are linked with early English settlers and several street names have changed through time.  The 
following text includes current and former name references, as appropriate.     
 
East Quogue, originally known as Fourth Neck, was shown on the 1686 map of the Ogden Purchase 
(also known as the Quogue Purchase, it included lands west of Canoe Place that were conveyed on May 
12, 1659 by Sachem Wyandanch and his son on behalf of the Shinnecocks to John Ogden).  Fourth Neck 
is an area of land to the east of Quogue that projects eastward into Shinnecock Bay.  Its boundaries were 
a tree on the Quogue Path on the west and Acha-Backa-We-Suk Creek (Weesuck Creek, formerly called 
Wesuck Creek) on the east.  Today the hamlet of East Quogue encompasses not only Fourth Neck 
between Phillips and Weesuck Creeks, but the majority of Pine Neck to the east and adjoining upland 
areas, including Oakville, extending generally to the vicinity of the Sunrise Highway. 
 

 
Moses Phillips’ House circa 1800, shown in early 1900s 
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In the early 1800s Moses Phillips (1759-1829) and his first wife, Elizabeth Jessup (1767-1802) moved 
east to Fourth Neck from Basket Neck in Speonk (now Remsenburg).  He settled with his family on the 
east side of Olcott’s Pond (headwaters of Phillips Creek) on the north side of what is now Montauk 
Highway but was at that time an unpaved path.  Travelers at that time entered Fourth Neck from the 
west via Old Country Road as Montauk Highway was not surveyed and established in the area until later 
in the 1800s.  Moses Phillips’ house was formerly located at what is now the east corner of Lakewood 
Avenue and Montauk Highway and was originally a two-story structure.  It is shown as the western-
most house in the hamlet in the 1858 map below.  By the early 1900s it had been reduced to a one-story 
building (shown above) and it burned in the 1930s. 
 
The names of the farmers that settled Fourth Neck were Carter, Downs, Phillips, Jackson, Foster, 
Howell, Reeve, and Squires.  The main occupations of the early settlers were farming, fishing, and 
woodcutting.  Farming did not produce a good income so it was supplemented by cutting of wood, 
which was plentiful to the north of the hamlet in the “Oakville” area.  The cut wood was transported to 
Flanders Bay by oxen and shipped to New York City by schooners. 
 

     
 
In 1852 a small church was built and Fourth Neck became Atlanticville, as shown in an 1858 map 
above.  At that time Atlanticville boasted a main street (Montauk Highway), with one road (Lewis Road, 
also known as Oak Road and Box Tree Road) extending northward towards Riverhead, an east-west 
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through road (Old Country Road), and Squires Avenue, which extended across Pine Neck.  None of the 
roads south of Montauk Highway existed.   
 
By 1870 there were 179 residents, a church, a school, a post office, and two stores.  Bay Avenue had 
been extended to the shore of Shinnecock Bay and Walker Avenue (formerly known as Jackson Avenue 
and Wacker’s Lane) was partially opened as an unpaved road.  An early 1900s photo of Jackson Avenue 
is shown below, before it was renamed Walker Avenue. 
 

 
View of Walker (formerly Jackson) Avenue, early 1900s 

 
The Long Island Rail Road was extended through Atlanticville in the 1880s, bringing summer and 
winter visitors and triggering the start of the Boarding House Era.  By 1885 the population had increased 
to 267 and in 1891 Atlanticville became East Quogue. 
 
To take an historic stroll through the main street of East Quogue (Montauk Highway), we start at the site 
of Moses Phillips’ house at the east corner of Lakewood Avenue and Montauk Highway (shown on page 
1 above) – his house has been gone for nearly a century and the lot is occupied by a new house.  The 
next house on the north side (724 Montauk Highway, shown on page 4) belonged to William Phillips 
(1797-1869) and his wife, Rosetta Corwin (1800-1855).  William and Rosetta had a farm that extended 
back to where the Long Island Rail Road tracks are now.  The third house on the north side (722 
Montauk Highway) belonged to William F. Edwards (1827-1896) and his wife, Caroline R. Phillips 
(1827-1892).  These houses are some of the oldest in the hamlet, dating back to the initial Fourth Neck 
community; we are fortunate that two of them remain in relatively intact condition. 
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William Phillips and Rosetta Corwin Home, circa early 1800s 

 
Traveling eastward, to the east of West End Avenue (formerly West Side Avenue) on the south side of 
Montauk Highway was the Fuller Dairy Farm; this farm is long vanished and a car repair shop and 
houses now occupy this land.  On the north side of Montauk Highway to the east of the current West 
Side Avenue at the location of the current pizza restaurant was the H. Sacks and Sons vegetable delivery 
business; they delivered vegetables from local farms to the Ralston Independent Grocery Stores on 
eastern Long Island.  The Log Cabin Inn run by Lew Morris, an artist, inventor, and photographer, was 
located east of the Sacks property; the studio was later a tea house. 
 

 
The Log Cabin Inn, circa 1915 
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On the southwest corner of Montauk Highway and Walnut Avenue (first opened in the late 1800s, not 
named until the early 1900s), at the site of the first East Quogue school in the mid-1800s, is a building 
now occupied by the Catholic Mission Church.  The building was constructed in 1897 by the Atlantic 
Council of the Junior Order of United American Mechanics (QUAM) and was originally known as 
Atlantic Hall/Mechanics Hall (see below).  In addition to serving for QUAM meetings, the building was 
originally used for showing movies, holding dances, basketball games, and a small acting theater. 
 

 
Methodist Church (left) and Atlantic Hall (right background) 

 
Across from Atlantic Hall on the north side of Montauk Highway is the United Methodist Church.  The 
first church building was constructed in 1852 – an early photo is shown below.  Next to the Church and 
connected to its east side is the Community House; this building was initially a school house in the 
1840s and was moved across Montauk Highway in the 1890s where it was used as an ice cream parlor, a 
clothing store, a dry goods store, and a photo store.  It was sold to the Church in the 1920s by Ida 
Squires Downs.  The photo above was taken following the addition of this building to the Church.  The 
parsonage immediately to the west of the Church was constructed in the early 1900s.  Behind the Church 
is an old cemetery, now owned by the Town of Southampton.  The O. T. Culver House, now used as the 
Church’s thrift shop, was also built in the early 1900s. 
 

 
Methodist Church, circa 1852 
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The Foster-Downs Home, now a Town of Southampton Landmark, was constructed in 1857 for Capt. 
and Mrs. Josiah Foster and is located just to the east of the United Methodist Church buildings.  A 1911 
photo is shown below.  Capt. James E. Downs and his wife, Ida Squires, purchased the home in 1887; 
the home remains in Downs family ownership.  The boy standing on the running board is Edward W. 
Downs (1906-2000). 
 

 
Foster-Downs Home, 1857, photo circa 1911 

 
To the east of the Foster-Downs Home, on the corner of what is now Central Avenue, was another 
Foster House, which reportedly housed the first Post Office in East Quogue.  William H. Foster, 
appointed on January 12, 1858, was the first postmaster.  The Post Office was located in the kitchen and 
consisted of a slant-top desk now preserved in the National Post Office Museum in Washington D. C.  
The parlor was used as a school room.  Although Post Office operations were later moved to their 
current location on Bay Avenue, this area on the north side of Montauk Highway continued to be known 
as the Post Office Block.   
 

    
Left:  Former Foster House (now demolished).  Note the ice cream store on the right side of this picture – it is the same as 

the ice cream store shown in the photo at right. 
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On the subject of Post Offices, the earliest postal letterbox in the United States (1787) was formerly 
located at the intersection of Box Tree Road and Lewis Road (formerly the main road to Riverhead).  
Beginning in 1747 a stagecoach made two round trips per week from Brooklyn to Greenport by way of 
the north shore and returned on the south shore.  Mail was delivered to area residents by this stagecoach 
from which the driver dropped the mail into the hollow of a white oak tree known as the Box Tree.  The 
tree burned in 1891; a picture of the remains of the tree in front of Burton’s Store is shown below and a 
remnant can be found in the Schoolhouse Museum at the Quogue Library.  A small monument (shown 
below) marks the former location of the Box Tree. 
 

            
 
On the south side of Montauk Highway to the east of Walnut Avenue was a general store opened before 
1875 and owned by John Henry Phillips.  Just to the east, on the west corner of Bay Avenue, was the 
Oakland Boarding House (later called the Studio Inn) run by Isabella Benjamin Phillips (1851-1935); 
this building has been demolished.   
 

 
Former Studio Inn and Oakland Boarding House 



East Quogue Hamlet Heritage Area Report 8 

On the north side of Montauk Highway, across from Bay Avenue was the Orange T. Culver Store (circa 
1916), formerly owned by G. W. Wines in 1902 and the site of the Post Office at that time.  O. T. Culver 
originally worked for John Henry Phillips across the street and then decided to open his own store.  The 
Benjamin Rogers General Store was also located in this area in the late 1800s.  This building was later 
moved back from the highway and used as a tea room and rental home.  It is reported to be present 
behind the New Moon restaurant (former O.T. Culver Store).   
 

  
Former Orange T. Culver Store (left) and former Benjamin Rogers General Store (right) 

 
On the southeast corner of Bay Avenue and Montauk Highway was the Howell Boarding House; the 
current East Quogue firehouse (built in 1950) now occupies this location.  George W. Howell bought the 
Jacob Fanning property and farm house in 1870, opening it as a sportsmen’s home for duck hunters.  In 
1890 he rebuilt the home as a boarding house and operated it until his death in February 1917 for both 
summer visitors and as a fall hostel for hunters.    His son, Lewis E. Howell and his wife, Inez  Corwin 
Howell, continued operating the boarding house as the East Quogue House (later returning to “Howell 
House”) for another 25 years.  A cottage located to the rear of the Howell House still exists across the 
street from the current post office.   
 

 
Howell House/East Quogue House, circa September 1, 1906. 
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The first East Quogue firehouse (shown below) was built in the 1920s and was located just to the east.  
This structure remains present and is now a residence.  
 

. 
First East Quogue Firehouse, circa 1920 

 
Continuing eastward, on the north side of Montauk Highway could be found the second East Quogue 
school - a one-story two-room schoolhouse built in 1873.  In the early 1900s a new school (shown 
below) was built at this site (the second story was added later).  Schyler Terrell and his wife are reported 
to have purchased the second school building and moved it - it is now a kitchen on the back of the 
Halsey House (southwest corner of Halsey Avenue and Montauk Highway).  In 1955/1956 the third 
school building was demolished and the present-day school was constructed on Central Avenue.  This 
old school site is now a vacant lot to the west of Ryder’s Hardware Store. 
 

   
Left:  Former Third School House, north side of Montauk Highway, photo from 1930s/1940s.  
Right:  Rear of Halsey House showing the former second school building attached at the rear.   

 
Further eastward the Vail Boarding House could be seen at the northwest corner of Vail Avenue and 
Montauk Highway, the Carter home and boarding house was on the northeast corner of Vail Avenue and 
Montauk Highway (it burned in 1933), and the Roselawn Cottage Boarding House was across the street, 
at the southeast corner of Weesuck Avenue and Montauk Highway.  Roselawn Cottage burned in 1999; 
this structure was rebuilt and is now a dentist office.  Photos of these former structures can be seen on 
the next page. 
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Vail Boarding House 

 

 
Carter Home and Boarding House 

 

 
Roselawn Cottage Boarding House 
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Just east of Weesuck Avenue, on Carter Lane, is a boat yard originally constructed in 1896 by George 
Frank Carter.  This boatyard was purchased by the Scopinich family in 1956 and continues in operation.  
An early 1900s photo of G. F. Carter’s Weesuck Boat House, as seen from Montauk Highway (formerly 
known as the Sunrise Trail) is shown below. 
 

 
George Frank Carter’s Weesuck Boat House 

 

 
 
Across Montauk Highway from the boatyard on the northwest side of the pond was the Nathanial Davis 
Jackson House, one of the first houses in East Quogue.  Nathanial Jackson’s great-grandson, John 
Eckart, and his family were the last occupants of this house, which has been demolished. 
 
Further east on the south side of Montauk Highway is the Stone Creek Inn, formerly known as the 
Ambassador Inn.  It was constructed in 1910 as a large two-story house; the third story was added later.  
During Prohibition it was a speakeasy with a small cottage in the back used to store liquor brought in by 
boat from Shinnecock Bay to Weesuck Creek, and then up the creek to the cottage.  After Prohibition 
ended the house stood empty for many years until 1938 when it was converted to a restaurant. 
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On the north side of Montauk Highway is a farmhouse formerly owned by Howard T. Culver, who 
farmed the land and sold the produce at his stand, which remains in operation today.   
 
A trip through East Quogue would not be complete without travelling down the many side streets.  To 
the south, these streets lead to Shinnecock Bay and were lined with many boarding houses, particularly 
after the advent of the Long Island Rail Road in the late 1800s.  Farms were present to the north; several 
remain in operation today. 
 
At the east end of the hamlet, Squires Avenue cuts across Pine Neck towards the bay.  At the end of 
Squires Avenue is a small road, at the end of which was the Pine Grove Boarding House (see photo 
below), founded by Benjamin Franklin Squires in 1863 and operated by family members until the early 
1960s, when it was sold.  Although this boarding house burned in the 1970s, close by is the existing 
Caffrey House (see photo below), which was owned and run as a boarding house by a daughter of B. F. 
Squires.  Subsequently the Caffrey House was run by B. F. Squires’ granddaughter, Minerva Squires, 
and upon Minerva’s death it was sold.   
   

 
Former Pine Grove Boarding House 

 

 
The Caffrey House 
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At its east end Squires Avenue turns into Willow Shade Road, which leads to Shinnecock Bay.  On the 
west side is the former Willow Shade Boarding House, originally operated by Nelson Squires, a son of 
B. F. Squires.  This boarding house was sold in the early 1900s and has been a private residence since 
then. 
 

 
Former Willow Shade Boarding House 

 
Heading westward, the next side street to the Bay is Weesuck Avenue.  Near the north end of the street 
is the former home (see photo below) of Jacob Carter II (1801-1877) and Eliza Robinson (1807-1891), 
early settlers of Fourth Neck.  Further down, on the east side, just south of #15 was the Pine View 
House/Inn built by John Loving (1864-1944) and operated by his wife until at least 1902; an early 1900s 
photo is shown on the next page.  By 1916 it had been renamed the Puchmuller Inn and was operated by 
F. Vetter.  The Canadian writer, Palmer Cox, famous for his “Brownie Books,” boarded at the Inn.   
 

 
Jacob Carter Home, circa early to mid-1800s 
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Pine View House, Weesuck Avenue 

 
The Aldrich Boatyard now occupies the end of Weesuck Avenue.  This boatyard was originally owned 
by Harry G. Carter, who built it between 1902 and 1916 and eventually sold it to the Aldrichs.  In 1946 a 
suburban seaplane base was established here and included rental planes, student instruction, sightseeing 
flights, and commuter flights to New York City. 

 
Bay Avenue is the next major side street extending to Shinnecock Bay and was the first street extended 
south from Montauk Highway (circa 1860).  The East Quogue Post Office is located on the west side 
and was formerly part of the kitchen of the Foster House on Montauk Highway (see page 6 above).  The 
public dock is at the end of Bay Avenue and has long been used to access the bay for fishing, shell-
fishing (oysters were plentiful until the 1938 hurricane), and other water activities.  A small shed located 
on the Bay View House property to the west of the end of Bay Avenue was used by fishermen to store 
nets and oars. 
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Travelling westward, Walker Avenue (formerly known as Jackson Avenue) is the next major side street 
extending to Shinnecock Bay.  The Walker House, a large boarding house, was formerly located on the 
west side at the end of Walker Avenue and was built in 1871 as a hunting lodge.  Many adjacent homes 
were rented to visitors as part of the tourism activities centered around the Walker House and ferries 
operated out of this area to take boarders to the beaches across the bay.  The main building was burned 
in 1939, although several of the adjacent homes remain and have been converted to private dwellings.   
 

 
The Walker House, destroyed by fire, November 1939 

 
Between Bay Avenue and Walker Avenue is a small street now known as Walnut Avenue and noted 
simply as “public lane” in 1902.  At the end of this street, which did not extend to the bay, the East 
Quogue Field Club was constructed at some time between 1902 and 1916.  Prior to the advent of the 
field club, patrons of the Walker House and other local boarding houses were directed to the Quogue 
Field Club for their tennis and golf needs, which was noted as being a 15-minute drive in the Walker 
House advertisements in the Brooklyn Daily Eagle in 1902.  By 1916 the East Quogue Field Club, 
which included a one-story field house, had been built and could be reached directly by driveways 
extending from the Walker House, Bay Avenue, and the south end of Walnut Avenue.  The club grounds 
were not as extensive as those of the Quogue Field Club but did include tennis courts and a baseball 
diamond.  The East Quogue Field Club appears to have disappeared by the mid-1900s as documented on 
historic aerial photos.      
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To complete our tour of the southern side streets of East Quogue, we next visit West End Avenue 
(formerly known as West Side Avenue), where the McCormick Duck Farm was formerly present at 29 
West End Avenue.  Duck eggs were once hatched at this farm when it was operated by the Terry family 
in the 1940s to supply duck farms located primarily to the west in Eastport and the Moriches area.   
 

 
West Side Avenue (now West End Avenue), early 1900s 

 
A tour of historic East Quogue would not be complete without a visit to some of the side streets running 
northward through farm country, the most important of which is Lewis Road, the main road to Fourth 
Neck for many years.  To the north of the Box Tree site (see page 7), at the northwest corner of Lewis 
Road and Old Country Road was the Twin Oaks Farm, a horse and dairy farm.  Further to the north is 
the Kijowski Farm, founded in the early 1920s and now preserved as agricultural land.  At the north end 
of Lewis Road is the Densieski Farm, which was started in the 1880s by Benjamin Downs, son of 
Sylvester Downs (later known as Reverend Downs) who raised potatoes and asparagus and established 
the First Methodist Church.  The original farm extended from Box Tree Road to Pleasure Drive in 
Flanders.  Benjamin Downs died as a young man and his son, Irving Downs, sold the farm to Antone 
Densieski in 1918.  This property has been farmed by the Densieski family ever since; most recently 
Antone’s children, Edmund and Regina.  Asparagus, cabbage, potatoes, corn, table vegetables, oats, 
calves, pigs, chickens, and horses have been raised on this farm.   
 

 
Former Benjamin Downs Farm, now Densieski’s Farm 
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The following pages catalogue East Quogue’s many remaining historic resources, which collectively 
document the development of this hamlet from its earliest settlement through the early 1900s and 
demonstrate the hamlet’s history and important links to farming, tourism, and commerce.  These 
resources, where carefully preserved, continue to grace and add historic tangible value to the 
community.  
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HISTORIC RESOURCES 
 
The East Quogue Hamlet Heritage Area may be described as those portions of the hamlet 
of East Quogue whose historic character deserves to be honored and is worth protecting.  
With reference to the Town Code, Chapter 330.5, such an area encompasses community 
resources that convey the area’s “special heritage.”  These structures and sites have been 
numbered and are shown as the shaded areas on the map below.  A larger-scale map is 
included in the Inventory section of this report.    
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1.  House                                                                                    SCTM #342-2-9 
     ca. 1920                                                                                                5 Bay Avenue 
 
This house is a one-story three bay-wide early bungalow type structure with two-over-
two divided-light double-hung windows and a front porch that has been enclosed. It is 
clad with cedar shingles, simple white trim work, and an asphalt roof. Gable end 
windows do not seem original. The house is not shown on the 1902 or 1916 historic 
maps.  The construction date of 1920 in Town records appears accurate. 
                      

 
 
2.  House                                                                SCTM #342-2-14                               
     ca. 1920                                                                                        9 Bay Avenue 
 
This two-story structure with steeply pitched cross gables lies on a brick foundation and 
has two-over-two double-hung windows and projecting pointed arches supported by 
small decorative brackets within the gable ends. The gable ends also feature a pair of 
windows capped with a shingled skirt. The second story is clad with cedar shingles which 
skirt over the first story finished in clapboard contained within corner boards. A brick 
chimney rises through the center of the roof ridge. The wrap-around entry porch is 
supported by oversized square columns and contains pointed archways mimicking the 
detailing elsewhere. This house is not shown on the 1902 or 1916 historic maps.  
According to Town records, the structure may have been built about 1920. A historic 
home with similar gable end detailing exists on the North Fork.  
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3.  House                                                                   SCTM #342-2-15                               
     ca. 1939                                                                                                 11 Bay Avenue 
 
According to Town records, this house was constructed circa 1939 but it may be older. It 
is a one-story three bay-wide house with a central chimney and brick foundation. It is 
clad with asbestos shingle siding and asphalt roofing. It retains a Queen Anne style 
dormer with a six-light triangle window and two-over-two divided light windows 
elsewhere. The home is not shown on the 1902 or 1916 historic maps.  
 

 
 
4.  Phillips-Crawbuck Home                                              SCTM #341-1-13                               
     ca. 1896                                                                                                 12 Bay Avenue 
 
This home is a large two-story side-gabled structure with two symmetrical front-facing 
cross gables creating symmetry not typically common during the Queen Anne era (1880-
1910).  The home rests on a brick foundation, has a central brick chimney, and is finished 
with painted clapboard siding and asphalt roofing. The original windows and shutters 
have been replaced. The full-width front porch has a shallow hipped roof and is 
supported by turned posts with decorative brackets. This home was constructed in 1896 
by R. Schuyler Terrell for Morris Raymond Phillips and his new bride, Inez Burr Penny, 
from Good Ground.  By 1916 George Crawbuck owned the home and in 1921 the 
property was sold by G. Thelinda Crawbuck to Mr. Gelston J. Water.  Thereafter, the 
home was owned successively by Mary C. Hofer (1954-?), Haakon Dahl (?-1970), and 
Dr. Sanjeeva Nayak (1970–present).  A fire damaged the interior of the home circa 1960, 
which was subsequently gutted by Mr. Dahl and rebuilt.   
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5.  House                                                                  SCTM #342-2-20                               
     ca. 1931                                                                                                 15 Bay Avenue 
 
This house is a late Four-Square type, built circa 1931. It is two stories tall, cube-like in 
volume, and has a hipped roof with vented cupola and two external asymmetrical 
chimneys. It is clad in cedar shingles and asphalt roofing, has a one-story side extension 
that may have been an open porch originally, a small entry porch with hipped roof, and a 
side bay projection also with hipped roof. Exposed rafter tails decorate the eaves, while 
six-over-one double-hung windows wrap the elevations. This house is not depicted on 
either of the 1902 or 1916 historic maps – it was part of the former G. W. Howell 
property at those times.   
 

 
 
6.  H. Whitman Home                                                               SCTM #342-2-24                               
     ca. 1910                                                                                                 19 Bay Avenue 
 
Built for H. Whitman about 1910, this home is a two-story side-gabled structure with a 
one-story wrap-around porch. Its eaves are decorated with large brackets, the elevations 
clad with cedar shingles (with decorative patterning here and there) between corner 
boards, and the roof is clad with asphalt. A brick chimney rises through the center of the 
roof while two two-story bay projections accent the front and sides of the home. Many of 
the windows have been replaced with new units matching the style of the original 
windows, and the house appears to have been lifted and placed on a poured concrete 
foundation. This home had not yet been constructed in 1902 when the property was part 
of the large G. W. Rockefeller development to the east.  By 1916 the Rockefeller 
property was reduced in size, and Foster Crossing (to the south) was a proposed road.       
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7.  Smith-Edwards Home                                                            SCTM #341-1-16                               
     ca. 1900                                                                                                 20 Bay Avenue 
 
This house is a fine example of the Queen Anne style with a very high level of intact 
historic integrity. It has an overall asymmetrical arrangement, a wrap-around porch, a 
variety of shingle patterning, two one-story bay projections, and projected gable ends. It 
is two-and-a-half stories tall and is clad with cedar shingle siding and roofing. The 
shingle siding is painted in a Victorian color scheme of purple, green, and off-white. 
Two-over-two double-hung windows dominate the structure and are sometimes coupled 
with louvered shutters. This house was owned by Caroline Smith in 1902 and L. Edwards 
in 1916.  Although Town records show a 1920 construction date, an earlier construction 
date is more likely.     
 

 
 
8.  Joseph E. Jacobs Home                                                              SCTM #342-2-25                               
     ca. 1910                                                                                                 21 Bay Avenue 
 
This home was built about 1910 for Joseph E. Jacobs. It consists of a larger cross gable 
form along the street and a smaller rear cross gable extension, both with central brick 
chimneys. It is clad with cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof. The original windows 
throughout appear to have been replaced. This home had not yet been constructed in 1902 
when it was part of the large G. W. Rockefeller development to the east.  By 1916 the 
Rockefeller property was reduced in size and Foster Crossing (to the north) was a 
proposed road. Although Town records indicate a 1930 construction date, an earlier date 
is more likely.   
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9.  F. L. Terrell Home                                                            SCTM #341-1-17                               
     ca. 1910                                                                                                 22 Bay Avenue 
 
This home was built about 1910 for F. L. Terrell. It is a two-story Shingle style structure 
with a broad sweeping gambrel roof and a two-story front-facing bay projection with a 
conical gabled roof. A two-story side bay projection also exists. Above the integral full-
width wrap-around front porch supported by Doric columns is a small gabled dormer. 
The windows throughout are two-over-two double-hung windows. The home is clad with 
painted cedar shingles with some patterning in the second story and gable ends, and an 
asphalt roof. This home, which retains a very high level of historic integrity, had not yet 
been constructed in 1902 when this property was noted as owned by B. F. Rogers.  By 
1916 the home was present.  Although Town records indicate an 1895 construction date, 
a later construction date is more likely.   
 

 
 
10.  House                                                                SCTM #341-1-18                               
       ca. 1920s                                                                                           24 Bay Avenue 
 
This house is a two-story Craftsman style home with a side-facing gable and internal full-
width front entry porch with arched detailing. The roof overhangs are broad and 
supported by decorative brackets. A front facing shed-roofed dormer has exposed rafter 
tails and six-over-one divided-light double-hung windows appear throughout. The home 
is clad with cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof. This house is not shown on either of 
the 1902 or 1916 historic maps.  Although Town records indicate a 1910 construction 
date, a later construction date is more likely.    
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11.  Wm. Randall Home                                                           SCTM #342-2-26.2                               
       ca. 1910                                                                                                 25 Bay Avenue 
 
This home was built circa 1910 for William Randall. It is an early two-story Four Square 
type home with hipped roof, hipped dormers with paired windows, and a central 
chimney. Other embellishments uncharacteristic of the Four Square style include paired 
roof brackets, a wrap-around entry porch, rear additions, and a side bay projection. The 
home is clad with painted cedar shingle siding and asphalt roofing. The windows 
throughout appear to be replacement double-hung units. This home had not yet been 
constructed in 1902, although the property was noted as owned by Wm. Randall.  By 
1916 the structure was present. Although Town records indicate a 1930 construction date, 
a circa 1910 construction date is more likely.   
 

 
 
12.  Maurice Smith Home                                                               SCTM #341-1-19                               
       ca. 1890                                                                                                 26 Bay Avenue 
 
This home is a two-story Queen Anne style structure with asymmetrical massing, 
patterned shingle siding, cross gables, and a wrap-around porch supported by turned 
posts. It is clad with cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof. Of note is a two-story side 
bay projection with an integral half-round fanlight window dormer within the bay’s 
hipped roof. Two-over-two double-hung windows dominate the elevations. This home is 
shown as owned by Maurice Smith on both the 1902 and 1916 historic maps.  It may 
have replaced an earlier structure shown in the general vicinity on an 1873 map.    
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13.  Charles Van Hise Home                                                                  SCTM #341-1-20                               
       ca. 1882                                                                                                 28 Bay Avenue 
 
This property, located immediately north of what was the East Quogue Field Club, 
contains a residence that exhibits the principal characteristics of the Queen Anne style, 
including an asymmetrical composition, cross gables, shingle patterning, and a wrap-
around porch. The home is shown as owned by Charles Van Hise on both the 1902 and 
1916 historic maps and Town records indicate an 1882 construction date, which is 
consistent with local knowledge.  The home retains a very high level of integrity. 
 

   
 
14.  George William Wines Home                                                         SCTM #342-2-43                              
       ca. 1910                                                                                                 29 Bay Avenue 
 
Situated across from what was the eastern driveway to the East Quogue Field Club, this 
property includes a residence constructed in 1910 for George William Wines. The 
property was owned by L. Edwards in 1902, but no development was apparent at that 
time.  The residence exhibits the principal characteristics of the Queen Anne style, 
including asymmetrical composition, cross gables, shingle patterning, and a wrap-around 
porch. Its windows are reported to be original.   
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15.  Box Tree Site                                                                           Town Right-of-Way 
       ca. 1787-1893                                                              Box Tree Road at Lewis Road  

 
A small monument (shown below) marks the former location of the Box Tree, the earliest 
postal letterbox in the United States, which was formerly located at the intersection of 
Box Tree Road and Lewis Road (formerly the main road to Riverhead).  Please see page 
7 of the Introduction for more information. 

 

 
 

16.  House                                                                     SCTM #342-1-56.001                               
       ca. 1926                                                                                                  4 Carter Lane 
 
This property was owned by Edward Walters in 1902 and 1916, but was not developed 
until later. The one-story summer bungalow with a hipped roof and front porch addition 
is reported to have been constructed in 1926 as a 750-square-foot “proof” home at a cost 
of $2,989 (less plumbing, electric, and painting).  The 1927 taxes were reported to have 
been $47.51!   
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17.  G. F. Carter Boatyard                                                              SCTM #342-1-14.001                               
       ca. 1864                                                                                                 7 Carter Lane 
 
The Hampton Shipyard originated as the G. F. Carter Boatyard in the mid-1800s. The 
structure is a two-story wood-frame barn-like building with six-over-six divided light 
windows, a gable roof, and exposed rafter tails. It is clad with painted vertical wood 
planks. The shipyard property is shown as owned by G. F. Carter on the 1902 historic 
map, but no structure is shown on this lot until 1916, when a small boathouse was 
present.      
 

 
 
18.  House                                                                            SCTM #342-1-25                               
       ca. 1925                                                                                            10 Carter Lane 
 
This property was part of the G. P. Carter property in 1902 and 1916, but remained 
undeveloped until later. It is a small one-story summer bungalow dwelling with a side 
gable, central chimney, shingle cladding, and two-over-two double hung windows. 
Additions to the front and sides were added later. The home rests on a concrete 
foundation. 
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19.  Oakwood Cemetery                                         SCTM #288-1-166                               
       ca. 1900                                                                                             1 Cemetery Road 
 
The Oakwood Cemetery on Lewis Road was established between 1902 and 1916 (based 
on historic maps) in what was once the Oakville area of East Quogue.  The cemetery is 
marked by two stone cobble pillars at the entrance on Lewis Road:  the plaque on the left 
pillar notes a date of 1932 and “Robert A. Burke, Port Jefferson, Contractor” and the 
plaque on the right pillar notes “Erected in memory of John H. Phillips by his loving wife 
Isabella F. Phillips”.  This cemetery remains active and contains over 300 gravestones.     
 

    
 
20.  House                                                                           SCTM #340-1-26                               
       ca. 1925                                                                                          16 Central Avenue 
 
This house is not shown on the 1916 historic map, which was the first to depict the 
recently-opened Central Avenue.  The home is a 1920s Four Square style, with a cube 
like mass, hipped roof, and hipped roof dormer with a pair of small double-hung 
windows with divided lights. The full width front porch was eventually enclosed.    
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21.  House                                                                           SCTM #315-3-44 
       ca. 1940                                                                                         19 Central Avenue 
 
Located on the northern portion of Central Avenue, just south of the railroad tracks, this 
was a relatively undeveloped area before the 1940s.  Town records indicate the structure 
was built circa 1940 but it appears earlier. It is a small vernacular two-story home clad 
with its original shingle siding with tall exposures, an asphalt roof, and a central brick 
chimney. The home rests on a concrete foundation, has six-over-six divided light double-
hung windows and side and front one-story additions. 
 

 
 

22.  House                                                                           SCTM #340-1-32                              
       ca. 1920                                                                                          24 Central Avenue 
 
This house is not shown on the 1916 historic map, which was the first to depict the 
recently-opened Central Avenue.  The home is a one-story summer bungalow style 
structure with a front-facing gable and two-over one divided light double-hung windows. 
Its front porch has been enclosed and it has been clad with asbestos shingle siding. It rests 
on a concrete foundation.   
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23.  House                                                                           SCTM #340-1-38                               
       ca. 1930                                                                                           30 Central Avenue 
 
This house is not shown on the 1916 historic map. It is a one-and-a-half story Craftsman 
style structure with a front-facing gable with deep overhangs supported by thin brackets.    
It has a front porch with a hipped roof with exposed rafter ends and supported by simple 
wood posts.  This home is reported to have been owned by the Edwards family circa 
1950 to 1960. 
 

 
 
24.  House                                                                           SCTM #340-1-37                               
       ca. 1930                                                                                        30A Central Avenue 
 
This house is not shown on the 1916 historic map. It is a one-and-a-half story Cape style 
home with a central entry and a large one-story addition to the side. It is clad with cedar 
shingles with a tall exposure and an asphalt roof.    
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25.  J. R. Nugent Home                                                               SCTM #315-3-50.001                               
       ca. 1910                                                                                           31 Central Avenue 
 
This house is shown on the 1916 historic map as owned by J. R. Nugent and is reported 
to have once been owned by Fred and Maude Squires.  Central Avenue was not opened in 
1902 and no house is shown in the area at this time.  Although Town records show a 
1900 construction date, a later construction date appears more accurate. The home is a 
modest early summer bungalow type with a cross-gable L-plan and central chimney. It is 
clad with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof and has double-hung windows with divided 
light patterns throughout. 
 

 
 
26.  Former J. E. Downs Barn                                                        SCTM #340-1-42.002                               
       ca. 1935                                                                                        34A Central Avenue 
 
This house is the last remaining former barn of the James and Ida Downs farmhouse at 
556 Montauk Highway and was eventually converted and expanded into a residence. It 
appears to retain considerable historic integrity, although certain modifications have been 
made.  It is clad in asbestos shingle siding and asphalt roof shingles.    
 

 



East Quogue Hamlet Heritage Area Report 32   

27.  Homes                                                                                   SCTM #340-1-43                               
       ca. 1920s                                                                          36 and 36A Central Avenue 
 
This property includes two homes, a bungalow in the rear and a dwelling in the front, 
both of which were constructed in the 1920s.   The dwelling is a one-and-a-half story 
structure with a front-facing gable with a very small gherkin-style ridge.    It has a front 
porch with a hipped roof that appears to have been enclosed after the home’s 
construction.  It is clad with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof and has double-hung 
windows with single panes.  The bungalow is not readily visible from the street. 
 

 
 
28.  House                                                                     SCTM #315-3-53.002                               
       ca. 1920                                                                                          39 Central Avenue 
 
Although Town records report a 1915 construction date, this house is located on what 
was the F. S. Downs property in 1916 where there is no house shown at that time.  The 
structure is a two-story vernacular farmhouse form with a front-facing gable, full-width 
front porch with simple square posts supporting a shed roof and clad with asbestos 
shingle siding. The windows throughout appear to be original two-over-two double-hung 
windows. An external side chimney is a later addition.   
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29.  House                                                                     SCTM #315-3-54.005                               
       ca. 1920                                                                                          41 Central Avenue 
 
Although Town records report a 1910 construction date, this house is located on what 
was the F. S. Downs property in 1916 where there was no structure shown at that time.  A 
circa 1920 construction date appears more accurate.  The home is a vernacular two-story 
cross-gable farmhouse with central chimney and wrap-around porch. It is clad with cedar 
shingles and an asphalt roof and has two-over-two double-hung windows throughout. 
 

 
 
30.  Agricultural Building                                                             SCTM #288-01-32.001                               
       ca. 1935                                                                                        132 Damascus Road 
 
This agricultural building typifies many such multi-purpose buildings found in the 
Oakville area of East Quogue, which have long been used for agriculture.  It is a one-
story masonry structure with a wood roof. It has a front-facing gable with an extended 
“lean-to wing.” 
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31.  Houses                                                                              SCTM #386-2-2                               
       ca. 1920                                                                                                  27 Dune Road 
 
Although Dune Road is not shown on the historic maps of East Quogue and is not 
directly accessible from the hamlet by a bridge, nevertheless over the years small cottages 
were constructed across Shinnecock Bay for use by hunters, fishermen, and boarding 
house guests.  There are two similar cottages at this location that are characteristic of the 
unpretentious and seasonal nature of this building type.   
 

 
 
32.  Former Bill Swan Sail Loft                                                 SCTM #385-1-37.003                               
       ca. 1920                                                                                                  94 Dune Road 
 
This property includes what is reported to be the former Bill Swan sail loft (two-story 
structure) that was formerly located on Josiah Fosters Path.  This building has been 
moved to its current setting, modified over the years, and was eventually converted into a 
restaurant. 
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33.  Former East Quogue Field Club                                                    SCTM #342-1-21                               
       ca. 1910                                                                                           22 Foster Crossing 

 
This house was originally the clubhouse of the East Quogue Field Club and was 
constructed circa 1910 based on historic map information.  The roof form is unusual in 
that it overhangs each side of the square-plan structure, creating an integral porch that 
wraps around the entire structure.  The rafter ends are exposed and a gable dormer rises 
from the front roof ridge, which has a triangular multi-light window.  The home has a 
central doorway flanked by windows with twelve-over-one-light double-hung sashes.  

 

 
 

34.  House                                                                            SCTM #342-1-40                               
       ca. 1920?                                                                                            3 Halsey Avenue 
 
This property is depicted as vacant but owned by Mrs. S. Carter on both the 1902 and 
1916 maps, when Halsey Avenue was a private lane.  Although Town records indicate a 
1900 construction date, a post-1916 construction date may be more accurate.  The 
structure appears to be a side-gable one-story Craftsman style bungalow with deep 
overhangs and decorative brackets. It is clad in cedar shingles and an asphalt roof. 
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35.  House                                                                            SCTM #342-2-3 
        ca. 1939                                                                                              4 Halsey Avenue 
 
This property was once owned by Richard “Schyler” and Frances Terrell, who purchased 
it from the Ryder family in 1882.  The property was sold to George and Louise Tucker in 
1934 and later to Jesse and Eugenia Hulse.  The home is reported to be a Sears & 
Roebuck house and was purchased by Jesse and Eugenia in 1947.  They lived the 
remainder of their lives in the home, which reportedly has not been modified since its 
construction.  It is a one-and-a-half story structure with a side facing gable, a one-story 
extension to the south side, and a projecting window bay to the front which the gable roof 
extends over. The home is clad in cedar shingle siding, asphalt roofing and double-hung 
windows throughout. A brick chimney rises through the roof ridge at the south end of the 
home’s main volume. 

 

 
 
36.  Carter-Hallock Home                                                               SCTM #342-1-42.002                               
       ca. 1900                                                                                              7 Halsey Avenue 
 
This house is a vernacular two-story cross-gable home with a wrap-around porch and 
two-over-two double-hung windows. It is clad with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof. 
This house is shown on the 1902 historic map as owned by C. A. Carter and on the 1916 
map as owned by J. D. Hallock.  No structures are shown in this area on earlier maps.  
Although Town records indicate a 1907 construction date, a circa 1900 date appears more 
accurate.  It has recently been renovated. 
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37. House                                                                                       SCTM #342-2-19 
      ca. 1920                                                                                          14 Halsey Avenue 
 
This home was reportedly known as the Halsey House in the 1940s and was used as a 
summer rental.  At present it has been divided into multiple apartments. It is a three-story 
structure with a side gabled roof with jerkin-head detailing on the sides. The centered 
entry is sheltered by a full-width flat roof porch supported by simple round columns. The 
entry projects about 24” which continues to the second story and terminates at the eave 
line. The roof is accentuated with three gabled roof dormers and other charismatic details 
exist on the sides and rear of the home, such as a tri-part short bay window with hipped 
roof. The home is clad with cedar shingle siding, an asphalt roof, and double-hung 
windows throughout.  

 

 
 
38.  House                                                                    SCTM #341-1-97.001                               
       ca. 1930                                                                                          18 Jackson Avenue 
 
No house is shown at this location on either of the 1902 or 1916 historic maps.  The 1930 
construction date shown in Town records appears accurate. The house is a two-story side-
gabled Craftsman style structure which rests on a concrete foundation and is clad with 
painted cedar shingles. The front porch is integrated under the roof line and is supported 
by large brick piers. 
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39.  House                                                                     SCTM #288-1-31.007                               
       ca. early 1900s                                                                                      46 Lewis Road 
 
This home is a two-story farmhouse-style home with later additions.  The home appears 
to have had some of its windows and doors replaced and is clad with wood shingles and 
an asphalt roof.  
 

 
 
40.  House                                                                     SCTM #288-1-58.005                               
       ca. 1929                                                                                                 55 Lewis Road 
 
This home is a two-story Four Square style home with a hipped roof and a front-facing 
hipped roof dormer with a pair of small double-hung windows. There is a one-story 
extension to the side and rear and the front porch has been enclosed. The home appears to 
have had its windows replaced and be clad with vinyl siding and an asphalt roof. It is not 
portrayed on 1902 or 1916 historic maps.  
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41.  House                                                                           SCTM #288-1-57                                
       ca. 1920                                                                                                59 Lewis Road 
 
Based on its appearance and reported construction date, this house may have been a 
former agricultural building later converted into a residence, which is common in this 
area of the hamlet. It is a two-story structure with a front-facing gable roof accented by 
two-story painted wood raised pilasters on each side which sit on a tall painted wood 
plinth. To each side are symmetrical one-story shed roof extensions.  The home is clad 
with cedar shingle siding, an asphalt roof and double-hung windows.   
 

 
 
42.  Kracke Homestead                                                                  SCTM #288-1-64.001                               
       ca. 1891                                                                                                 65 Lewis Road 
 
There are two structures on this property which are part of the Kracke family nursery.  
The first home is two stories tall with a front-facing gable roof that sweeps down to 
provide a small gabled entry porch. Most of the windows appear to have been replaced. 
Cedar shingles and asphalt roofing finish the exterior. An original barn/garage at the rear 
has been attached by a covered breezeway. The second home is two stories and square in 
plan. It has a side entry, hipped roof, and later one-story side additions along with the 
roof dormer. The home is clad in cedar shingles and asphalt roofing and many of its 
windows and doors have been replaced.  The property appears to be associated with 
“Geo. Plankert” on the 1902 map, and “Frank S. Downs” on the 1916 map.  
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43.  House                                                                           SCTM #288-1-54                               
       ca. 1920                                                                                                 66 Lewis Road 
 
The dwelling on this property is a good example of the local vernacular farmhouse.  It is 
a two-story structure with a front-facing gable and full-width entry porch with shed roof 
and turned posts.  It has a central entry door and brick chimney.  Many of its windows 
have been replaced.  It is clad with asbestos shingles and an asphalt roof.  This dwelling 
is not shown on the 1916 or 1902 historic maps and the 1920 construction date in Town 
records appears accurate. 
 

 
 

44.  House                                                                            SCTM #288-1-74                               
       ca. 1927                                                                                                 83 Lewis Road 
 
This structure is a simple one-story long, rectangular dwelling resting on a concrete block 
foundation and clad with a combination of wood siding and asphalt roofing.  It is not 
shown on the 1902 or 1916 historic maps and the 1927 construction date shown in Town 
records appears accurate. 
 

 
 

 
 



 
East Quogue Hamlet Heritage Area Report 41 

45.  C. Terrill/Mrs. L. B. Moore Home                                                SCTM #288-1-75                               
       ca. 1870                                                                                                 85 Lewis Road 
 
The home on this property consists of a primary two-story volume with a front-facing 
gable that has been added onto and changed over the years.  It is clad with cedar shingles 
and an asphalt roof, and has a central brick chimney and a variety of window types.  This 
home is identified as that of Mrs. L. B. Moore on the 1916 and 1902 historic maps, and 
appears to the home of C. Terrill on the 1873 map.  No house is shown in this area on the 
1858 map.  Although Town records indicate an 1875 construction date, a circa 1870 
construction date appears more likely.   
 

 
 

46.  Harry Smith Home                                                                   SCTM #314-2-17.001 
       ca. 1910                                                                                               87 Lewis Road 
 
This house is a one and one-half story side-gabled structure with a one-story addition to 
the side.  It is three bays wide with a side entry and two small windows along the eaves.  
It may have been a Greek Revival period structure but has been renovated in recent years 
removing many of the characteristic details of its era.  This home is not shown on the 
1902 historic map, but is noted as belonging to Harry Smith on the 1916 map.  Although 
Town records show a 1949 construction date, the historic maps suggest a circa 1910 
construction date as more likely. 
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47.  A. Randall Home                                                                SCTM #314-2-16                               
       ca. 1890                                                                                                 88 Lewis Road 
 
This structure consists of a two-story front-facing gable with wrap-around porch set 
against a two-story gambrel roof rear volume with one-story shed roof extension. It is 
clad in cedar shingles and asphalt roofing.  Many of the windows are replacement units.  
This home is shown as owned by A. Randall on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps, but is 
not depicted on the 1873 map.  Therefore, the 1890 construction date shown in Town 
records appears accurate. 
 

 
 
48.  Former E. S. Aldrich Barn                                                       SCTM #340-1-53.003 
       ca. 1910                                                                                               159 Lewis Road 
 
This structure is a one and one-half story side-gable dwelling with corner boards, original 
windows, and exposed rafter tails.  It is clad with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof.  It 
appears to have originally been a barn that was later converted to a residence.  This home 
is on property shown as owned by E. S. Aldrich in 1902 (no building shown) and 1916 
(barn shown in the area where this home is now present).  Although Town records show 
an 1899 construction date, the historic maps suggest a slightly later circa 1910 date.  
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49.  Former House                                                                SCTM #317-1-24 
       ca. 1920                                                                                    389 Montauk Highway 
 
Now a real estate office, the eastern portion of this business was once a house.  In 1940 it 
was owned by Edward and Edith Vavruska and operated as a store specializing in Army, 
Navy and work clothing.  It consists of a pair of one and one-half story front-facing 
gables joined together with an enclosed porch. It is clad with cedar shingles, and has a 
central brick chimney and second story shed dormers to each side.  This structure is not 
shown on either the 1902 or 1916 historic maps and the 1920 construction date shown in 
Town records appears accurate. 
 

 
 

50.  Miss M. Terrell House/Ambassador Inn                                SCTM #316-1-47.001 
       ca. 1910                                                                                    405 Montauk Highway 
 
This structure is a large three-story Colonial Revival style building with a cross gable 
gambrel roof and shed dormers. It has a small central brick chimney, painted shingle 
siding and an asphalt roof and appears to retain many of its original six-over-six double-
hung windows. A front wrap-around porch has been enclosed and a one-story addition to 
at least one side has been added. Decorative woodwork in the form of an elliptical 
fanlight occurs over the third floor tri-part window in the center of the front gable, and 
half-round fanlights exist in each gable end.  No structure was present here in 1873, an 
unlabeled structure is shown on the 1902 historic map, and Miss M. Terrell is shown as 
owning this building in 1916.  Town records show a construction date of 1910, which is 
consistent with local anecdotal information.  This was originally a two-story house; the 
third story was a later addition.  During Prohibition it was a speakeasy, but stood vacant 
thereafter until 1938 when it was converted to a restaurant (now the Stone Creek Inn).   
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51.  House                                                                              SCTM #316-1-5 
       ca. 1920                                                                                    422 Montauk Highway 
 
This structure is a one and one-half story vernacular farmhouse which has been 
significantly altered over the years. It has a front-facing gable, cedar shingle siding, 
replacement windows and an asphalt roof. The house has been expanded via several one-
story extensions to the rear.  No structure is shown at this location on the 1902 or 1916 
historic maps; the 1920 construction date in Town records appears accurate.  
 

 
 

52.  Richard “Schyler” Terrell Family Home                            SCTM #342-2-1 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    429 Montauk Highway 
 
This structure is a beautiful example, albeit late, of the Queen Anne style in East Quogue. 
It is a two and one-half story dwelling (converted to office use) with an asymmetrical 
configuration, cross gables, patterned shingling, projected gable ends over decorative 
brackets, and nine-over-two double-hung windows. It is clad in painted cedar shingles 
and an asphalt roof, has a center brick chimney and one-story addition to the rear. The 
front porch does not appear to be original.  This property was once part of a larger parcel 
owned by Richard “Schyler” Terrell and his wife, Frances, who purchased it from the 
Ryder family in 1882.  The home appears to have been constructed a short time thereafter 
and includes a rear addition consisting of the former second East Quogue schoolhouse 
originally constructed in 1873.  The Terrells purchased the school building late in 1900, 
when it was replaced by the newly-constructed third school building, and added the 
second school building to the rear of the home as a kitchen, as shown below.  Mr. Terrell 
appears to have passed away between 1902 and 1916 as the house is shown as owned by 
Mrs. R. S. Terrell in 1916.  Although Town records show a 1915 construction date, it 
appears that a circa 1900 construction date is more accurate. 
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53.  C. Culver/William Culver Home                                                    SCTM #316-1-29 
       ca. 1870                                                                                    430 Montauk Highway 
 
This home is a two-story vernacular farmhouse with cross gables and smaller one-story 
additions to the rear. It has a side entry, clapboard siding, and an asphalt roof. Its 
windows, doors, and shutters have been replaced and the half-round accenting is 
contemporary.  This structure is shown on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps as owned by 
William Culver.  A house owned by C. Culver is shown at this location on the 1873 map, 
but no structure is shown on the 1858 map, suggesting that a circa 1870 construction date 
for this home may be more accurate than the 1910 date in Town records. 
 

 
 
54.  William Culver Home                                                                      SCTM #316-1-30 
       ca. 1910                                                                                    436 Montauk Highway 
 
This home is a two-story vernacular farmhouse. It is three-bays wide and one room deep 
with a rear one-story ell extension.  It has a center brick chimney, cedar shingle siding, 
and an asphalt roof. It appears to retain original eave trim work and six-over-six double-
hung windows and rests on a brick foundation.  This structure is not shown on the 1902 
or earlier maps, but is noted on the 1916 map as owned by William Culver.  Although the 
Town records a 1900 construction date, a circa 1910 construction date is more likely. 
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55. First Firehouse                                                                 SCTM #342-2-5 
      ca. 1920s                                                                                   449 Montauk Highway 
 
This is a long linear two-story structure with a front-facing gable roof. Its first story is 
masonry and the rest is clad with asbestos siding and an asphalt roof. A center brick 
chimney rises at the rear. The windows are replacement units, and the front of the 
building has been modified with a contemporary garage door, siding, and windows.  This 
is East Quogue’s first firehouse and was constructed on the former property of the 
Howell House Boarding House (also known as East Quogue House).  The 1930 
construction date in Town records is slightly later than the 1920s construction date based 
on local anecdotal information.  East Quogue’s current firehouse was built in 1950 and 
this building was converted to residential use thereafter.  
 

   
 
56. Former LIRR Station                             SCTM #316-1-43.2 
      ca. 1882                                                                                     452 Montauk Highway 
 
A former LIRR station building that is thought to have originated in Quogue was 
reportedly moved to this site by Edward Magnus after the Quogue stop was eliminated 
from the LIRR’s former Sag Harbor Branch.  The station building appears to have been 
converted to a dwelling but retains its distinctive hipped-roof configuration.  The 1902 
and 1916 historic maps show structures in this area belonging to G. Carter, but it cannot 
be discerned if this building is among them.  No structure is shown at this location in 
1858 or 1873.   
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57. Jacob Carter Home                                                                  SCTM #315-2-12.001 
      ca. 1900                                                                                     464 Montauk Highway 
 
This home is a modest two-story Queen Anne style structure with a central brick 
chimney, cross gables, and a wrap-around porch supported by turned columns and 
decorative brackets.  The front gable end is accented with pointed arch double-hung 
windows.  The house is clad with asbestos shingles, corner boards, and an asphalt roof.  
The 1902 and 1916 historic maps show this house to belong to Jacob Carter at those 
times.  No house is present at this location in 1873.  Therefore, the 1900 construction date 
in Town records appears accurate. 
 

 
 
58.  R. P. Squires/C. W. Brown Home                                                  SCTM #315-3-10 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    478 Montauk Highway 
 
This is a late Queen Anne residence that has been re-clad, removing some of its original 
architectural detailing.  It is a one and one-half story cross-gable structure with projecting 
gable ends supported by small decorative brackets, a sweeping rear gable, and a front 
porch supported by square columns accented with decorative brackets and spindle work.  
It has two-over-two double hung windows throughout and is clad with vinyl siding and 
an asphalt roof.  A home with this same general configuration is shown on the 1916 
historic map as owned by C. W. Brown and on the 1902 map as owned by R. P. Squires.  
Structures are present in this area on the 1873 and 1858 historic maps, but the house does 
not appear to date back this far.  Although Town records show a 1920 construction date, a 
circa 1900 construction date appears more likely.     
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59.  Business                                                                              SCTM #341-1-4 
       ca. 1936                                                                                    481 Montauk Highway 
 
This wood frame commercial building has a brick parapet wall storefront with decorative 
steps and a diamond inset at the top contributing to its 1930s street front appeal.  This 
building appears to have been constructed at the former location of a business owned by 
J. H. Phillips in 1902 and Mr. Phillips in 1916.  The 1936 construction date for this 
building shown in Town records appears accurate.  
 

 
 
60.  M. R. Phillips Buildings                                                               SCTM #341-1-43 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    489 Montauk Highway 
 
This mother-daughter storefront consists of an older one and one-half story original, that 
would have originated as a residence, and later grew to include a larger mirror-image of 
itself next door.  It is a wood frame structure with sweeping, front-facing gables, 
clapboard siding, and double-hung windows over storefront glazing at the ground level.  
These buildings are shown on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps, together with a stable to 
the rear, as owned by M. R. Phillips.  The spacing between the buildings in 1902 suggests 
that they were residential at that time, but by 1916 additional construction appears to 
have occurred and the buildings have the appearance of commercial structures.  No 
structures are shown in this area on the 1873 map.  Therefore, the 1860 construction date 
shown in Town records does not appear correct; a circa 1900 construction appears likely. 
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61.  W. L Ryder Home                                                                     SCTM #315-3-12.001 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    490 Montauk Highway 
 
This structure represents a modest vernacular version of the Queen Anne style in East 
Quogue.  It is a two-story dwelling with cross gables and a central brick chimney over a 
brick foundation.  The front-facing gable end is decorated with an eight-light awning 
window over which the shingle siding bulges to create a nice drip edge.  The house has 
two-over-two double-hung windows throughout and is clad with asbestos shingle siding 
and an asphalt roof.  The front porch appears contemporary.  This building is shown in 
the 1902 and 1916 historic maps as the home of W. L Ryder.  A structure is also shown 
in this area in 1873, but it is not clear if it is this building.  The 1910 construction date in 
Town records may be in error; a circa 1900 construction date appears more likely. 
 

 
 
62.  Former Columbia Garage           SCTM #341-1-45 
       ca. 1900 and 1910                                                                   495 Montauk Highway 

 
Buildings are shown at this location on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps, together with a 
stable to the rear, as owned by M. R. Phillips.  The spacing between the buildings in 1902 
suggests that the building on the right was present but the building on the left was 
constructed after that time.  By 1916 the building on the left was present and the 
buildings were joined as they are today.  No structures are shown in this area on the 1873 
map and circa 1900 construction for the building on the right seems likely.  In the 1920s 
the building on the left was reported to be the Columbia Garage. 
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63.  Benjamin Franklin Rogers Home                                           SCTM #315-3-59.004 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    506 Montauk Highway 
 
This well-preserved structure is a two-story Queen Anne dwelling with cross gables and 
double-hung windows with elongated diamond patterned divided lights.  The full-width 
front porch has a hipped roof with a gable accenting the point of entry and is supported 
by Doric columns which sit on a half-shingled wall. The building’s elevations and roof 
are clad with cedar shingles.  This building is shown in the 1902 and 1916 historic maps 
as the home of B. F. Rogers, whose full name was Benjamin Franklin Rogers.  Mr. 
Rogers was the proprietor of a general store just to the west of the house from circa 1880 
to the early 1900s.  A structure is also shown in this area in 1873, but it is not clear if it is 
this building.  The 1900 construction date in Town records appears likely. 
 

 
 
64. Atlantic Hall (now the Catholic Church)                             SCTM #341-1-48 
      ca. 1897                                                                                     511 Montauk Highway 
 
This two-story Four-Square-type structure is clad with painted cedar shingles and an 
asphalt roof.  It has broad overhanging eaves, a brick chimney, and double-hung 
windows.  Its front porch has been modified and expanded.  This building was originally 
constructed in 1897 by the Atlantic Council of the Junior Order of United American 
Mechanics and was originally known as Atlantic Hall/Mechanics Hall.  It is shown on 
both the 1902 and 1916 historic maps, but is not depicted on the 1873 map.  A school 
house, now part of the Methodist Church, formerly occupied this location until the 1890s.    
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65.  Andrew Jackson/P. Frederick Home                                             SCTM #341-1-49 
       ca. 1890                                                                                    517 Montauk Highway 
 
The front portion of this home is a one and one-half story cross-gabled cedar shingled 
farmhouse with some decorative patterning and an asphalt roof.  A brick chimney rises 
from the house ridge, windows with divided light patterns exist throughout, and a wrap-
around porch has a hipped roof and is supported by square columns sitting atop a 
shingled half wall.  The front portion of this structure was present in 1902 and was owned 
by Andrew Jackson at that time.  By 1916 a portion of the rear structure appears to have 
been constructed and the property was owned by P. Frederick.  No structure is shown on 
the 1873 map.  The 1890 construction date shown in Town records appears accurate.  
 

 
 
66.  Business                                                                            SCTM #341-1-50 
       ca. 1930                                                                                    521 Montauk Highway 
 
This large three-story wood frame structure is four bays wide and three bays deep.  It has 
a brick chimney rising through the roof’s ridge and is clad with cedar shingles and an 
asphalt roof.  Original two-over-one double-hung windows exist throughout.  No 
structure is shown on the historic maps at this location and, therefore, the 1930 
construction date in Town records appears accurate.  
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67.  G. W. Wines Post Office/Orange T. Culver Store                        SCTM #315-3-60 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    524 Montauk Highway 
 
This former store/dwelling, now with a large addition fronting the sidewalk, is a two and 
one-half story structure with a front-facing gable and shingle siding between corner 
boards.  A brick chimney rises through the roof’s ridge.  Most of the windows seem to be 
replacement units, including those in the gable end.  A structure is shown at this location 
on the 1858 and 1873 maps, but the first reported building owner was G. W. Wines, who 
is noted as having a post office at this location in 1902.  By 1916 this building was 
operated by Orange T. Culver as a hardware store.  It is now the New Moon Café.  
Although a 1910 construction date is shown in Town records, a circa 1900 construction 
date for the two and one-half story portion of the structure appears more likely. 
 

  
 

68.  Former Benjamin Franklin Rogers Store Site                              SCTM #315-3-60 
       ca. 1880                                                                                    524 Montauk Highway 
 
This former general store was operated by Benjamin Franklin Rogers from circa 1880 to 
the early 1900s.  It is shown on the 1902 and 1916 maps and may also be noted on the 
1873 map.  Mr. Rogers’ home was on the same property, both of which were located 
immediately west of the school at that time.  The Post Office was also operated from this 
building for a time.  The building was later moved back from Montauk Highway and 
used as a tea room and rental home.  It was reported to have most recently been located 
on the New Moon Cafe property, but the building could not be identified.   
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69. Miss Catherine Walker Home                                                         SCTM #341-1-51 
      ca. 1900                                                                                     525 Montauk Highway 
 
This lovely old farmhouse, now with several additions to the side and rear, is a two-story 
side-gabled structure with cedar shingle siding, a brick chimney, and asphalt roofing.  It 
appears to retain most of its original two-over-two divided-light double-hung windows 
and has a full-width screened-in front porch with shed roof supported by turned posts 
with decorative brackets.  This home was shown on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps as 
owned by Miss Catherine Walker.  Elizabeth Fox Overton, who owned the home in 2002, 
reported that the home was built by Catherine Walker for her son, William Walker.  
Mabel Squires Overton purchased the home from William Walker in 1914.  Allen 
Overton, her son, inherited the house upon her death in 1964.  Allen married Elizabeth 
Fox and they lived in the house starting in 1967.  No structure is shown at this location on 
the 1873 map.  The 1900 construction date in Town records appears accurate. 
 

 
 
70. Business                                                                           SCTM #315-3-63 
      ca. 1930                                                                                     534 Montauk Highway 
 
This long one-story commercial structure retains a decorative parapet wall, lending it 
decorative charm.  This building is located on what was formerly the grounds of the F. S. 
Downs property in 1902 and 1916 and may pre-date the 1930 construction date noted in 
Town records based on its appearance in early photos shown on the lower right of page 6.  
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71.  H. T. Phillips Home                                                                 SCTM #341-2-2 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    543 Montauk Highway 
 
This former dwelling (now offices) is two and one-half stories tall with a side-gabled roof 
and side cross gable. It is three bays wide with a side entry and has a wrap-around porch 
supported by tapered square columns.  It is clad with painted cedar shingle siding and an 
asphalt roof and has replacement window units.  This home was shown on the 1902 and 
1916 historic maps as owned by H. T. Phillips.  No structure is shown at this location on 
the 1873 map.  Although a 1910 construction date is shown in Town records, a circa 1900 
construction date appears more accurate. 
 

 
 
72.  Foster-Downs Home                                                      SCTM #340-1-49.002 
       1857                                                                                         556 Montauk Highway 
 
This Greek Revival residence with later Italianate embellishments was built for Captain 
and Mrs. Josiah Foster in 1857 and later acquired by the Downs family by which it is still 
owned.  This residence was part of a farm; the last remaining barn associated with the 
farm is now a residence at 34A Central Avenue.  The 1902 and 1916 historic maps show 
ownership by Mrs. J. E. Downs at those times.  It is a two-story, five bay side-gabled 
dwelling with symmetrical twin internal end chimneys and a two-story rear ell. It is clad 
with asbestos shingle siding and an asphalt roof and retains its original double-hung 
windows.  It was designated as a Town Landmark in January 2013. 
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73.  House                                                                              SCTM #341-2-3 
       ca. 1935                                                                                    565 Montauk Highway 
 
This home is a one-story structure with hipped roof and Colonial Revival-style entry roof 
supported by profiled brackets.  It has cedar shingle siding, an asphalt roof, a brick 
chimney, and paired double-hung windows with six-over-one divided light patterns.  This 
home is located on what was once part of the H. T. Phillips property; it is not shown on 
the 1902 or 1916 historic maps and the 1935 construction date in Town records appears 
accurate. 
 

 
 
74.  United Methodist Church Community House                       SCTM #340-1-52.001 
        ca. 1840                                                    568 Montauk Highway 
 
This structure is located on what was formerly part of the Mrs. J. E. Downs property and, 
based on certain architectural details, may have been built by the same builder as the 
Foster-Downs House at 556 Montauk Highway.  This structure was originally a school 
house located across the street at the corner of Walnut Avenue and Montauk Highway.  It 
was moved in the 1890s to the Downs property and used for various businesses, 
including a photo store and a laundromat.  In 1925 the building was sold to the Methodist 
Church by Ida Downs.  The building is a long, one-story rectilinear volume with a front-
facing gable roof and Greek Revival style detailing.  It has wide trim along the eaves and 
gable end, six-over-six double-hung windows, a center entry with three light transom 
above, and small five-light triangle gable end windows.  It is clad with painted cedar 
shingle siding, an asphalt roof, and sits on a brick foundation.  The front entry porch 
appears contemporary.   
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75.  United Methodist Church                                          SCTM #340-1-52.001 
       ca. 1882                                                                      574 Montauk Highway 
 
The United Methodist Church structure in East Quogue was constructed in 1882, with the 
Community House (above) added in 1925.  It is a lovely example of the Shingle style, 
with a front-facing gable and square shaped bell tower at the front east corner.  It has a 
projected gable end on brackets, half-timbering, patterned shingle work and windows 
with Queen Anne divided lights.  
  

 
 
76.  United Methodist Church Parsonage                                      SCTM #340-1-52.001 
       ca. 1905                                                    586 Montauk Highway 
 
The Parsonage was constructed in 1905, based on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps and 
local knowledge.  This structure is a two-story cross-gable house with a wrap-around 
porch with turned posts and decorative brackets, double-hung windows, bay window 
projections,  and a jerkin chamfer to the front facing gable. It is clad with cedar shingles 
and an asphalt roof. 
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77.  D. Johnson House/Mendenhall Fuel                                      SCTM #341-2-4 
       ca. 1910                                                                                    575 Montauk Highway 
 
The principal structure on this property is a two-story cross-gabled structure with 
elements of the Queen Anne period. It has projected gable ends with decorative 
woodwork, two-over-one double-hung windows, and cedar shingle siding.  A front porch 
has been enclosed.  This structure was formerly the home of D. Johnson in 1916 and had 
not yet been constructed in 1902, when the property was part of the G. C. Carter property.  
Although Town records indicate a 1900 construction date, a circa 1910 construction date 
appears more likely. 
 

 
 
78.  G.P. Carter House (with Stable/Garage)                             SCTM #341-2-5 
       ca. 1910                                                                                    579 Montauk Highway 
 
This dwelling is a two-story cross-gabled structure with a large two-story bay projection 
on the front and side elevations.  It has brick chimneys and cedar cladding, and a front 
porch supported by Doric columns.  Its original windows have been replaced.  This 
structure is located on what was the G. C. Carter property in 1902; by 1916 this house 
had been constructed and was owned by G. P. Carter.  The 1910 construction date shown 
in Town records appears accurate. 
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79.  Orange T. Culver Home                                          SCTM #340-1-52.001 
       ca. 1910                                                                      592 Montauk Highway 
 
The current United Methodist Church thrift shop was formerly the home of Orange T. 
Culver, who also owned a hardware store in East Quogue (see #66).  This structure 
appears to have been constructed circa 1910; in 1902 there was no structure present and 
the property was owned by E. S. Aldrich.  By 1916 the O. T. Culver house was present.  
This structure is a two-story cross gable home with hipped roof, central brick chimney 
and two-over-two double-hung windows throughout.  There is a half-round window in 
the front facing gable, and the front porch has been enclosed. The house is clad with 
cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof. 
 

 
 
80.  E.S. Aldrich House                                                           SCTM #340-1-53.001 
       ca. 1910                                                                                    602 Montauk Highway 
 
This structure is a two-story cross-gabled vernacular home with a central brick chimney 
and a full-width wrap-around front porch with hipped roof and turned columns with 
decorative brackets.  The home has been re-clad with aluminum siding and an asphalt 
roof and many of its windows have been replaced.  Although a structure is shown at this 
location on the 1873 historic map, this structure appears to have been constructed circa 
1910; in 1902 there was no structure noted and the property was owned by E. S. Aldrich.  
By 1916 the house was present and noted as owned by E. S. Aldrich.  Town records show 
a 1900 construction date. 
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81. N. Halsey/H.H. Sanford Home                                                    SCTM #341-2-8.002      
      ca. 1860                                                                                     607 Montauk Highway 
 
This home is a well-preserved one and one-half story front-facing gabled dwelling with 
one-story side additions.  It has wide trim work and flared eaves, cedar shingle siding 
between corner boards, two-over-two double-hung windows and a side entry flanked by 
simple pilasters and a tall entablature.  Town records note an 1860 construction date, 
which is consistent with historic maps.  The 1873 map shows a home owned by N. 
Halsey at this location and the 1902 and 1916 maps show a home owned by H. H. 
Sanford.  No structure is shown on the 1858 map.  
 

 
 
82.  Relocated House                                    SCTM #360-2-5.001 
       ca. 1879                                                                                    653 Montauk Highway 
 
This well-preserved home is a two-story cross-gabled structure with many original 
features intact.  Its gable ends are accented with decorative scroll trim work and paired 
round-top double-hung windows; those that face the front have decorative glass, while 
the rest of the windows throughout are primarily two-over-two double-hung units.  A 
wrap-around porch provides much of the house’s ornamentation via the fluted columns, 
scroll-work brackets, eave brackets, and railing with densely arranged balusters.  Some 
louvered window shutters also exist.  There is a bay window on the east side, and the 
home is finished with wood siding, corner boards, and an asphalt roof.  Town records 
show an 1879 construction date for this building, which was reportedly moved from 
Patchogue in the 1980s by its current owners and reassembled.  In Patchogue the house 
was reported to have been the residence of a medical doctor.   
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83.  J.E. Terrill Home                                                       SCTM #340-3-21 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    680 Montauk Highway 
 
This large two-story residence has a front-facing cross-gable and shallow two-story 
gabled ell.  It is clad with asbestos shingles and an asphalt roof and has had its windows 
replaced and its front porch and porte cochere enclosed.  This property is shown as 
owned by J. E. Terrill in 1902 and the house is depicted on the 1916 map.  No structure is 
shown on the 1873 historic map.  A circa 1900 construction date appears accurate.  It is 
reported that this was the site of the S. Sacks and Sons produce business for many years.  
 

 
 
84.  E. M. Ellis Home                                                                   SCTM #340-3-24 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    700 Montauk Highway 
 
This two-story cross-gabled home with gambrel roof and shed dormers has tri-part four-
light windows with center attic vents in the gable ends and two-over-two double-hung 
units elsewhere.  A double-hung window with Queen Anne divided-light patterns and 
stained glass was noted.   It has a full-width porch with gabled wings on each side whose 
Doric columns have been replaced.  Brick chimneys, a side bay window, shingle 
cladding, and a brick foundation all contribute to a historic home maintaining a high level 
of integrity.  This house was noted on both the 1902 and 1916 historic maps as owned by 
Mrs. E. M. Ellis.  No structure is shown on the 1873 map.  The 1900 construction date in 
Town records appears accurate. 
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85.  H. F. Goodale Home (Whaler’s Inn)                                    SCTM #339-1-4 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    718 Montauk Highway 
 
This home exhibits a high level of historic integrity.  It is a two-story cross-gabled 
structure with elements of the Queen Anne style (gable end window light cuts and 
patterned shingles).  It has six-over-six double-hung windows and a full-width wrap-
around porch with turned posts and a porte-cochere extension.  It is clad in painted 
shingles and an asphalt roof.  A brick chimney rises through the center of the roof and the 
home rests on a brick foundation.  This house was shown on the 1902 and 1916 historic 
maps as owned by H. F. Goodale.  It may also be represented on the 1873 map as the 
house of W. F. Edwards, although this is not certain.  Town records show a 1900 
construction date. 
 

 
 
86.  W.F. Edwards Home                                                      SCTM #339-1-5.001 
       ca. 1850                                                                                 722A Montauk Highway 
 
This home is a historic treasure as a fine example of the Greek Revival style.  It is a one 
and one-half story side-gabled home with six-over-six windows, cedar shingle siding, a 
side entry flanked by simple pilasters and a tall entablature, and intact corner Doric 
pilasters.  It was originally the home of William F. Edwards (1827-1869) and his wife, 
Caroline Phillips (1827-1892).  By 1916 it was owned by Sherwood Hallock. 
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87.  William Phillips Home and Outbuildings                      SCTM #339-1-7.002 
       ca. 1850                                                                                   724 Montauk Highway 
 
This modest home consists of a one and one-half story eastern principal volume 
consistent with the Greek Revival style: three bays wide with a side entry and side-facing 
gable over a brick foundation.  An early western addition with front bay window takes 
the form of a salt box, and west of that extends a hipped roof summer porch on a concrete 
foundation.  Original six-over-six double-hung windows remain.  At the rear of the 
property two one-story shingle-clad outbuildings survive in good condition.  This home 
was originally that of William Phillips (1797-1869) and his wife, Rosetta Corwin (1800-
1855), and is depicted on the 1858 historic map.  In 1873 the property was owned by G. 
E. Phillips and in 1902 and 1916 the property is depicted as the estate of George E. 
Phillips.  A circa 1850 construction date appears likely. 
 

 
 

88.  Site of Moses Phillips Home                                                          SCTM #339-1-33 
        ca. 1800 (burned circa 1930)                                                726 Montauk Highway  
 
The former site of the Moses Phillips (1759-1829) home, constructed circa 1800.  The 
original home was destroyed by fire in the 1930s, but had remained in Phillips family 
ownership through at least 1873.  By 1916 it was the home of Richard Harriet.     
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89.  Reeves/Hastie Home                                                SCTM #250-4-15 
       ca. late 1800s/early 1900s                                                         76 Old Country Road 
 
This two-story farmhouse-style home with enclosed front porch and attached 
outbuildings is located in a wooded area north of the LIRR tracks.  Although the home is 
noted in Town records as constructed circa 1930, the 1902 map notes two buildings 
owned by B. Reeves in this area and the 1916 map shows three structures owned by 
William Hastie in the same area.  A structure is also pictured in this area on the 1873 
map, but no structures are shown on the 1858 map.  Although some of these structures 
may be younger, it is likely that at least one of the structures dates to the late 1800s.   
 

 
 

90.  M. Phillips Home (1 of 2)                                         SCTM #315-1-7 
       ca. 1900                                                                                      84 Old Country Road 
 
This home is a one and one-half story structure with front-facing gable, center chimney, 
and six-over-six double-hung windows.  It has a full-width front porch with turned posts 
and a hipped roof and is clad with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof.  Historic maps 
show this home to have been one of two adjoining homes owned by M. Phillips in 1902 
and 1916; this home is not depicted on the 1873 map.  Although Town records indicate a 
1910 construction date, a circa 1900 construction date appears more likely. 
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91.  T. J. Havens Home                               SCTM #315-2-31 
       ca. 1907                                                                                      85 Old Country Road 
 
This turn-of-the-century vernacular two-story farmhouse with front-facing gable and one-
story side ell with entry porch has had much of its original character altered by the 
addition of a large brick chimney onto its front elevation.  A two-story shed roof addition 
to the side is also contemporary.  The 1916 historic map shows this as the home of T. J. 
Havens.  The home is not depicted on the 1902 map. 
 

 
 
92.  M. Phillips Home (2 of 2)                                SCTM #315-1-8 
       ca. 1900                                                                                      86 Old Country Road 
 
This home is very similar to the other M. Phillips home (see #90). It is a one and one-half 
story front-facing gabled farmhouse with exposed rafter ends and double-hung windows 
throughout.  Its hipped roof entry porch with exposed rafter ends has been enclosed.  It is 
clad with asbestos shingles and an asphalt roof and sits atop a concrete foundation. 
Historic maps show this home to have been one of two adjoining homes owned by M. 
Phillips in 1902 and 1916; this home is not depicted on the 1873 map.  Although Town 
records indicate a 1910 construction date, a circa 1900 construction date is more likely. 
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93.  House                                SCTM #340-1-16 
       ca. 1930                                                                                      99 Old Country Road 
 
This 80+ year old summer bungalow has been kept in good shape over the years.  It is a 
one-story front-facing gabled structure with a more recent wrap-around porch added. It 
has double-hung windows, cedar shingle siding, an asphalt roof, and an external brick 
chimney at the center rear.  It is not shown on the historic maps and the construction date 
of 1930 shown in Town records appears accurate. 
 

 
 
94.  William Newton Foster Home              SCTM #340-1-6 
       ca. 1900                                                                                    108 Old Country Road 
 
A common building type in East Quogue, this is a two-story front-facing gabled 
farmhouse.  It is clad with painted cedar shingles between corner boards and has double-
hung windows throughout.  It has a side entry, wide trim intact along the roof line, and a 
full-width front porch with shed roof and turned posts.  The 1902 and 1916 historic maps 
document the home to have been owned by William Newton Foster.  A home owned by 
R. Terrill is shown at this location on the 1858 and 1873 maps; however, this structure 
does not appear to be of that age.  
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95. W. Jackson Home                                     SCTM #314-2-9 
      ca. 1910                                                                                     138 Old Country Road 
 
This one-story dwelling has a hipped roof clad in asphalt shingles, exposed rafter tails, 
and a decorative concrete block foundation.  No structures are shown in this area on the 
1902 map, but a dwelling occupied by W. Jackson is shown at this location on the 1916 
map.  Although the Town records indicate a 1900 construction date, a circa 1910 
construction date is more likely.     
 

 
 
96. Densieski/Downs Farm                                SCTM #249-1-1 
      ca. 1880s to early 1900s                                              2594 Quogue-Riverhead Road 
 
This farmstead includes a cross-gable residence dating to the 1880s, which has been 
altered somewhat with replacement siding and an enclosed hip-roofed porch.  Several 
wood-framed barns are also present, including a gambrel-roofed barn likely constructed 
circa 1900, a potato barn, and several other barns and sheds dating to the late 1800s and 
early 1900s.  This farm was started in the 1880s by Benjamin Downs.  His son, Irving 
Downs, sold the farm to Antone Densieski in 1918 and the property continues to be 
farmed by the Densieski family.   
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97. Albert Randall Home                             SCTM #342-2-42 
      ca. 1880                                                                                               14 Randall Lane 
 
This building originally consisted of a simple vernacular farmhouse which has been 
added onto and changed over the years.  The 1902 and 1916 historic maps show this 
home to have been the estate of Albert Randall at that time.  The home is not shown on 
the 1873 historic map.  Although Town records show an 1870 construction date, a 
somewhat later construction date is likely.    
 

 
 
98.  Caffrey Boarding House and Caffrey Home                                 SCTM #344-1-48 
       ca. 1890              2 Squires Avenue 
 

This property was one of several that comprised the center of Squires family activity 
from the mid-1800s to the early 1900s and is directly linked to the development of 
Squires Avenue and several nearby Squires family boarding houses.  The property 
includes a home and the Caffrey Boarding House.  The original home is at the center of 
the present dwelling (see current and historic images on next page): a two-story 
vernacular farmhouse with gable roof, two-over-two double-hung windows and full-
width porch (now enclosed) with shed roof and turned posts.  The home has been 
sensitively added onto over the years and retains its original architectural character.  The 
Caffrey House (see next page) is situated immediately northeast of the dwelling and 
consists of a two-story three bay-wide principal volume with smaller one and two-story 
wings to the side and rear. It has double-hung windows throughout with two-over-two 
divided lights and wrap-around porches supported by simple chamfered posts. The white 
painted siding is accented with green trim with some scalloping detail along the eaves. 
The roof is finished with green asphalt shingles.  These structures are not shown on the 
1873 historic map, but are noted on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps as owned by J. 
Caffrey, which is consistent with the 1890 construction date shown in Town records.  The 
Caffrey House was operated by Emeline J. Squires, a daughter of Benjamin Franklin 
Squires (original settler of this area and founder of Pine Grove Boarding House in 1863), 
who in 1878 married John William Caffrey, a member of the U. S. life-saving crew at 
Shinnecock.  After Emeline’s death in 1946, their daughter, Minerva Sinclair Caffrey, 
continued operating Caffrey House until her death in 1975, after which it was sold. 
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Caffrey Home 

 
 
 

 
Caffrey Boarding House 
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99.  Frederick Squires Residence (Site)                                           SCTM #344-1-47 
       ca. 1890              4 Squires Avenue 
 
This property is one of several that comprised the center of Squires family activity from 
the mid-1800s to the early 1900s.  Frederick Squires (1862-1956) and his wife, Edith 
Maud Hallock (1870-1964), were the first owners of this house, which appeared to have 
been constructed in the late 1800s.  Frederick was a bayman and escorted locals and 
visitors on fishing and hunting expeditions in the area.  The original home was at the 
center of the structure: a two-story vernacular farmhouse with gable roof, two-over-two 
double-hung windows and full-width porch that had been enclosed.  This structure was 
demolished in 2012/2013.  A circa-1910 one-story cottage is reported to survive onsite; 
the cottage has been updated over the years but its appearance and configuration were 
evocative of the historic merit of the property overall. 
 

 
Frederick Squires Residence (demolished) 

 

 
Frederick Squires Cottage 
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100. Tennell Home                               SCTM #318-1-61 
         ca. 1910                                                                                         49 Squires Avenue 
 
This two-story structure with front-facing gable and Victorian style entry canopy has a 
side addition and a large picture window now exists on the front elevation. An original 
two-over-two double-hung window exists in the gable end.  Although Town records 
indicate an 1890 construction date, this structure appears to date to circa 1910 based on 
its absence on the 1902 historic map.  The 1916 map shows a building owned by Tennell 
in this area. 
 

 
 
101.  House                                SCTM #360-2-45 
         ca. 1920                                                                                          20 Sunset Avenue 
 
This home originally had a central two-story side facing gabled volume flanked by two 
smaller one-story gable wings.  The core of the house was later enlarged with a two-story 
shed-roof volume.  The home has been recently renovated (right) with a new foundation, 
windows, and exterior cladding, as well as rear additions and modifications to the roof 
line.  This home is not shown on any of the historic maps and, therefore, the 1920 
construction date shown in Town records appears accurate. 
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102.  House                                    SCTM #360-2-51.001 
         ca. 1939                                                                                          32 Sunset Avenue 
 
The architectural character of this home is indicative of the late 1930s-early 1940s trend 
of constructing buildings evocative of period styles. This two-story dwelling is three bays 
wide, has a side-facing gable, twin external end chimneys, and one-story shed roof wings 
on each side.  It is clad with painted cedar shingles and an asphalt roof and has six-over-
six double-hung windows throughout.  The woodwork surrounding the main central entry 
provides the most decoration to the front facade with paired fluted pilasters supporting a 
gabled entablature with dentil molding and its date of construction prominently 
displayed.  A three bay garage also exists on the property.  This home is not shown on 
any of the historic maps and, therefore, the 1939 construction date shown in Town 
records appears accurate. 
 

 
 
103.  Former F. Cooke Stable                                  SCTM #373-1-37.001 
         ca. 1900                                                                                          37 Sunset Avenue 
 
This home was once the stable associated with the home at 39 Sunset Avenue and was 
eventually subdivided, renovated, and converted into a home.  Matching the style of its 
parent structure, it has a gambrel roof, gabled dormers and shingle siding.  This building 
was shown as the stable on the F. Cooke property on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps.  It 
was not present in 1873 and, therefore, the 1900 construction date in Town records 
appears reasonably accurate.   
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104.  F. Cooke Home                                   SCTM #373-1-37.002 
         ca. 1900                                                                                          39 Sunset Avenue 
 
As dwelling associated with the above resource, this home is a well-preserved turn-of-
the-century two-story Colonial Revival-style dwelling with a four-bay-wide side-facing 
gambrel roof, gabled dormers, and rear two-story matching ell.  Marking the home’s 
entry under its integral wrap-around porch supported by paired Doric columns, is a 
dormer with an ornate swan’s neck pediment flanked by 12-lite oval oculi windows.  This 
building was shown as the home of F. Cooke on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps.  It was 
not present in 1873 and, therefore, the 1900 construction date in Town records appears 
reasonably accurate.   
 

 
 
105.  R. Zakoski Home                                     SCTM #315-3-32.002 
         ca. 1910                                                                                                 2 Vail Avenue 
 
This is a two-story cross gabled vernacular farmhouse with exposed rafter tails, two-over-
two double hung windows, painted cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof. The front 
porch is enclosed and the home has been added onto over the years.  This building was 
shown as the home of R. Zakoski on the 1916 historic map, but is not depicted on the 
1902 map.  Although the Town reports a construction date of 1900, a circa 1910 
construction date appears more accurate.   
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106.  House                                           SCTM #315-2-27 
         ca. 1926                                                                                                 9 Vail Avenue 
 
This is among the larger homes along Vail Avenue, with two stories, an apparent attic, 
two-over-two divided-light double-hung windows, and a smaller addition to the rear.  
This house is not shown on any of the historic maps and, therefore, the 1926 construction 
date shown in Town records appears reasonably accurate. 
 

 
 
107.  Houses                                           SCTM #315-3-28 
         ca. 1900 and 1920                                                     10A through 10C Vail Avenue 
 
Three structures, including one dwelling reportedly dating to 1900 and two dwellings 
dating to 1920, are present at this address and were reported to have been formerly owned 
by Florence Vail.  These homes appear to have been summer bungalows with later 
additions to the rear.  The oldest dwelling appears to be that closest to the street and is 
faced with stone.  None of these homes are shown on the historic maps, although it is 
possible that the oldest home was moved from another location.   
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108.  House                                           SCTM #315-2-25 
         ca. 1930                                                                                               13 Vail Avenue 
 
Among the older homes along Vail Avenue are those built in the 1930s as summer 
bungalows.  This is a good example of that trend, with a one-story side-facing gable roof, 
divided-light double-hung windows, and smaller gable additions to the front and side.  
This house is not shown on any of the historic maps and, therefore, the 1930 construction 
date shown in Town records appears reasonably accurate. 
 

 
 
109.  House                                           SCTM #315-3-22 
         ca. 1928                                                                               22 and 22A Vail Avenue 
 
Among the older homes along Vail Avenue are those built in the early 1900s as summer 
bungalows.  These are good examples of that trend, with one-story front-facing gable 
roofs, divided-light double-hung windows, and exposed rafter tails.  These homes are not 
shown on any of the historic maps and, therefore, the 1928 construction date shown in 
Town records for the home on the left (below) appears reasonably accurate.  The Town 
reports that the home on the right (below) was constructed in 1946, although it is nearly 
identical to its neighbor and is likely to have been constructed at the same time.  These 
homes are reported to have been owned by Florence Vail in 1953. 
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110.  C. M. Carman Home                                         SCTM #315-3-21 
         ca. 1910                                                                                               24 Vail Avenue 
 
This turn-of-the-century home is two stories tall with a side-facing gable roof that flares 
out over the first story and a front-facing cross gable.  The integral front porch is 
supported by Doric columns and a bay window projection wraps a front corner of the 
house.  The structure is clad with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof and has had its 
original windows replaced.  This house is shown as owned by C. M. Carman on the 1916 
historic map, but is not depicted on the 1902 map.  Although Town records indicate a 
1900 construction date, a circa 1910 construction date appears more likely. 
 

 
 
111. Former Tiana Bay Life-Saving Station Home            SCTM #315-2-18.1 
        ca. late 1800s                                                                                       27 Vail Avenue 
 
This simple one-and-a-half story home was originally part of the Tiana Bay Life-Saving 
Station on the beach and was used as a home for the station members’ families.  It was 
purchased and moved across Shinnecock Bay to its present location around 1920 by John 
Edwin Carter, who was the Keeper of the Tiana Station in 1886.  John’s two daughters, 
Betty and Ada Carter, lived in this home until their deaths.  The residence has a side-
facing gable roof with a smaller cross gable facing the street. A brick chimney rises 
through the ridge of the front gable; another external brick chimney exists to the rear. The 
home is clad with white clapboard siding and a variety of window types. 
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112. Frank Vail Home                               SCTM #315-3-19 
        ca. 1910                                                                                                28 Vail Avenue 
 
This simple rectangular home is two stories tall and has a slight Craftsman-style character 
due to the brackets supporting the front-facing gable roof.  It is three bays wide and has a 
full-width front porch with shed roof and square columns resting on a shingled half wall. 
It is clad in cedar shingles and an asphalt roof and has a variety of window types, some 
original.  A one-story addition to the rear is contemporary. This house is shown as owned 
by Frank Vail on the 1916 historic map, but is not depicted on the 1902 map.  Although 
Town records indicate a 1920 construction date, a circa 1910 construction date appears 
more likely.  
 

 
 
113. House                                          SCTM #315-3-18 
        ca. 1935                                                                                                30 Vail Avenue 
 
This home is a slightly larger version of the typical 1930s summer bungalow.  It is a one 
and one-half story home with a front-facing gable, shed dormers on each side, and a 
center hipped roof entry porch that has been enclosed.  It is clad with painted cedar 
shingle siding and an asphalt roof and has double-hung windows throughout.  This house 
is not shown on any of the historic maps and, therefore, the 1935 construction date shown 
in Town records appears reasonably accurate. 
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114.  F. Perry Home                                 SCTM #315-3-7 
         ca. 1910                                                                                               34 Vail Avenue 
 
Typical of the 1930s summer bungalow building type, this home is one and one-half 
stories with a front-facing gable, a shallow pitched shed dormer to one side, and a center 
gable roof entry porch supported by square posts on a half-shingled wall.  It is clad with 
cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof and has double-hung windows throughout.  This 
house is shown as owned by F. Perry on the 1916 historic map, but is not depicted on the 
1902 map.  Although Town records indicate a 1930 construction date, a circa 1910 
construction date appears more likely. 
 

 
 
115.  House                                             SCTM #315-3-5 
         ca. 1920                                                                                               38 Vail Avenue 
 
This home was a one and one-half story vernacular farmhouse with gable roof that was 
enlarged with engaged shed dormers on each side.  The home has a central brick 
chimney, cedar shingle siding, an asphalt roof, and two-over-two double-hung windows 
with wood storm panels throughout. A simple shed roof entry porch is supported by 
turned posts. This house is not shown on any of the historic maps and, therefore, the 1910 
construction date shown in Town records appears inaccurate.  A circa 1920 construction 
date appears more likely. 
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116.  House                                             SCTM #341-2-1 
         ca. 1935                                                                                           4 Walker Avenue 
 
This house is very typical of the summer bungalow trend and has a high level of historic 
integrity.  It is a one-story structure with front-facing gable, shingle siding, and double-
hung windows.  It also has a front entry porch with a hipped roof and square columns on 
a shingled half wall.  It sits on a concrete block foundation and has an asphalt shingle 
roof.  This house is not shown on any of the historic maps and, therefore, the 1935 
construction date shown in Town records appears reasonably accurate.   
 

 
 
117.  House and H. T. Phillips Barn                               SCTM #341-2-9 
         ca. 1930, 1900                                                                                 6 Walker Avenue 
 
The original portion of this home is the three-bay-wide side-gabled volume to the left, 
now with engaged shed dormer, and front and back additions.  This home is not shown on 
any of the historic maps and the 1930 construction date in Town records appears 
accurate.  A two-story barn with vertical wood siding and exposed rafter ends exists on 
the property and has been converted to a garage.  This barn appears to have been 
formerly associated with the H. T. Phillips property; it is depicted on the 1902 and 1916 
historic maps.  A circa 1900 construction date appears reasonable. 
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118.  House                                           SCTM #341-1-58 
         ca. 1930                                                                                           7 Walker Avenue 
 
This is a large two-story Colonial Revival style home with a gambrel roof and shed 
dormers.  It is finished with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof and has recently been 
reclad and had its windows replaced. There is a two-story addition to the rear and another 
side addition underway.  This home is not depicted on any of the historic maps and is 
located on part of what was the Mrs. Catherine Walker property in 1902 and 1916.  The 
1930 construction date shown in Town records appears accurate.   
 

 
 
119.  T. H. Phillips Home                             SCTM #341-1-59 
         ca. 1910                                                                                           9 Walker Avenue 
 
This home is a well-preserved example of the Dutch Colonial Revival style in East 
Quogue.  It has two stories, a gambrel roof with shed dormers, dentil molding along the 
eaves, and a variety of period window types.  Above the flat-roofed front porch is a 
gabled dormer providing hierarchy to the home’s central entrance.  It is clad with painted 
cedar shingles and an asphalt roof and has one-story additions to the side and a two-story 
wing to the rear.  This house is shown as owned by T. H. Phillips on the 1916 historic 
map, but is not depicted on the 1902 map (it was part of the Catherine Walker property at 
that time).  Although Town records indicate a 1932 construction date, a circa 1910 
construction date appears more likely. 
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120.  George Bailey Home                                  SCTM #341-1-61.002 
         ca. 1904                                                                                         11 Walker Avenue 
 
This unique turn-of-the-century residence is one and one-half stories with a hipped roof, 
front-facing cross gable and octagonal dormer.  Its integral porch is supported by 
oversized Doric columns while double-hung windows with a variety of divided light 
patterns exist throughout.  The home is clad in cedar shingles, and asphalt roof with ridge 
ornamentation, and a one-story sun porch extends to one side.  This house is shown as 
owned by George Bailey on the 1916 historic map, but is not depicted on the 1902 map; 
it was part of the Catherine Walker property at that time.  The 1904 construction date in 
Town records appears likely. 
 

 
 
121. A. Carter Home                               SCTM #341-1-62 
        ca. 1890                                                                                          13 Walker Avenue 
 
This large home is two and one-half stories tall with cross gables and projecting gable 
ends with patterned shingle-work.  It has shingle siding and the steeply pitched roof with 
asphalt shingles has a brick chimney rising through the ridge.  To one side is a three-story 
hexagonal tower with hipped roof.  A full-width wrap-around entry porch is supported by 
turned posts and simple decorative brackets.  Six-over-one double-hung windows exist 
throughout, some of which are paired with false shutters.  The 1902 and 1916 historic 
maps depict this as the home of A. Carter.  This home is not shown on the 1873 map and, 
therefore, the 1890 construction date in Town records appears reasonably accurate. 
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122. B. F. Reeve/Mrs. Sarah Mackey Home                           SCTM #341-2-14 
         ca. 1900                                                                                         14 Walker Avenue 
 
This is an early 20th century home that contributes a lot of historic character to its 
immediate surroundings.  It is a four-bay wide two-story side-gabled structure with flared 
eaves and an octagonal tower to one side.  A full-width wrap-around front entry porch 
exists on the first story with a shallow hipped roof and Doric columns.  The windows 
throughout are two-over-two double-hung units, some of which are paired with false 
shutters.  A gabled dormer has been added and the house has been extended to the south.  
It is clad with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof.  This home is depicted as owned by B. 
F. Reeve on the 1902 map and as owned by Mrs. Sarah Mackey on the 1916 map.  The 
home is not shown on the 1873 map.  Although Town records show a 1908 construction 
date, a circa 1900 construction date is more likely. 
 

 
 
123.  T. Phillips Home                               SCTM #341-1-65 
         ca. 1898                                                                                         15 Walker Avenue 
 
This home is a two and one-half story turn-of-the-century structure with a side-gabled 
roof and front-facing cross gable over a two-story bay projection.  It has a full-width 
wrap-around porch with hipped roof and Doric columns over which is a small balcony to 
one side.  Shallow symmetrical two-story cross gables exist to each side and the home is 
clad in cedar shingles.  The double-hung windows throughout have been replaced.  This 
home is depicted as owned by T. Phillips on the 1902 and 1916 maps, but is not shown 
on the 1873 map.  The 1898 construction date shown in Town records appears likely. 
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124.  Mrs. M. E. Santurin/W. S. French Home          SCTM #341-1-66 
         ca. 1900                                                                                         17 Walker Avenue 
 
Somewhere within this renovated and enlarged home lies an old vernacular farmhouse 
that was noted to be owned by Mrs. M. E. Santurin in 1902 and W. S. French in 1916.  
This house is not shown on earlier maps and, therefore, the 1900 construction date of the 
original home shown in Town records appears reasonably accurate. 
 

 
 
125.  L. Edwards/George French Home           SCTM #341-1-67 
         ca. 1900                                                                                         19 Walker Avenue 
 
This home is a well-preserved two-story vernacular farmhouse with cross gables, center 
brick chimney, and wrap-around porch.  Most of the windows are double-hung units and 
the building is clad in cedar shingles and an asphalt roof.  This was one of several homes 
owned by L. Edwards in 1902 and was the home of George French in 1916. This house is 
not shown on earlier maps and the 1900 construction date shown in Town records 
appears reasonably accurate. 
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126.  L. Edwards/Dr. L. W. Hotchkiss Home                               SCTM #341-2-29 
         ca. 1900                                                                                         20 Walker Avenue 
 
This historic resource has been restored in recent years.  It is a two-story side-gabled 
dwelling with Italianate detailing such as the heavy trim along the eaves and paired 
brackets.  It has cedar shingle siding between corner boards and a cedar roof.  A brick 
chimney rises through the center of the roof and the windows are a combination of two-
over-two and six-over-one double-hung units as well as some replacement units.  Smaller 
one-story additions exist on each side and a full-width front porch with shed roof, paired 
brackets, and chamfered square columns greet visitors.  This was one of several homes 
owned by L. Edwards in 1902 and was owned by Dr. L. W. Hotchkiss in 1916.  This 
house is not shown on earlier maps and the 1900 construction date shown in Town 
records appears reasonably accurate.  
 

 
 
127.  House                                           SCTM #341-1-79 
         ca. 1920                                                                                         23 Walker Avenue 
 
This Dutch Colonial Revival home has a gambrel roof, gabled dormers with exposed 
rafter ends, and side walls of brick masonry.  The roof is clad with asphalt and double-
hung windows exist throughout, some coupled with operable shutters.  This house is not 
shown on any of the historic maps and the 1920 construction date shown in Town records 
appears reasonably accurate. 
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128.  W. L. Walker Home                    SCTM #341-1-80.001 
         ca. 1900                                                                                         25 Walker Avenue 
 
This late Queen Anne style residence is two stories tall with front and side projecting 
gables and a pedimented dormer.  The sides are finished with clapboard and corner 
boards and the roof has asphalt shingles.  The wrap-around porch on the first floor is 
supported by brick piers that are likely later modifications.  All of the original windows 
appear to have been replaced.  Although Town records list the construction date as 1911, 
this house is identified on the 1902 historic map as belonging to W. L. Walker and on the 
1916 historic map as Walter Watkins.  The house is not shown on the 1873 map.  This 
places the age of construction to circa 1900. 
 

 
 
129.  House                                           SCTM #341-1-81 
         ca. 1920                                                                                         27 Walker Avenue 
 
This house is similar to 4 Walnut Avenue.  It is a two-story side-gabled home accented 
with a front-facing, centered cross gable and engaged, pedimented dormers on either side.  
The front cross gable contains a bay window.  First floor porches have shed and hipped 
roofs and are supported by square columns.  The home is clad with cedar shingle siding 
and an asphalt roof with a small centered brick chimney.  The two-over-two and six-over-
two double-hung windows throughout appear to be original.  This house is not shown on 
any of the historic maps and, therefore, it was constructed after 1916.  Town records 
indicate a construction date of 1920. 
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130.  C. Walker Home                                SCTM #341-1-83 
         ca. 1910                                                                                         29 Walker Avenue 
 
This home is a vernacular farmhouse that has been added onto and changed over the 
years.  It is a two-story side-gabled structure with a primary front facing engaged cross 
gable with a bay window directly below at the first story.  A wrap-around porch extends 
to the south and west and is supported by turned posts.  The roof is clad with green 
asphalt shingles and the sides with painted cedar shingles.  The original windows 
throughout have been replaced.  A two-story addition extends to the north, and original 
accessory structures appear to be connected to the house through the northern addition.  
Although Town records indicate a construction date of 1890, this house is not shown on 
the 1902 or earlier historic maps.  On the 1916 map it is shown as owned by Mrs. C. 
Walker.  Therefore, a construction date of circa 1910 is indicated.   
 

 
 
131.  Walker House Annex                          SCTM #341-1-96 
          ca. 1876                                                                                        33 Walker Avenue 
 
This is a three-story home with gambrel roof and twin internal brick chimneys rising 
through the roof’s ridge.  It is clad in cedar shingle siding and asphalt roofing.  The 
original windows throughout have been replaced.  The side-gabled form has a wrap-
around porch on the front and sides supported by Doric-style round columns.  Three shed 
dormers create space on the third story.  Additions have been made to the north.  A 
garage that may have been an original barn exists on the rear of the property.  This house 
was originally an annex to the Walker House, a boarding house formerly located across 
the street to the west.  It is not depicted on the 1873 historic map, but is shown on both 
the 1902 and 1916 maps and was indicated to be owned by Mrs. W. C. French in 1902.  
Town records indicate a construction date of 1876, consistent with the historic maps. 
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132.  House                                           SCTM #341-1-41 
         ca. 1920?                                                                                        1 Walnut Avenue 
 
This home is a simple two-story vernacular farmhouse with a three-bay-wide front-facing 
gable and a centered internal brick chimney that has been parged over the years.  The 
original windows throughout have also been replaced.  It is clad with painted asbestos 
shingle siding and asphalt roofing.  One-story additions exist to the side and rear.  There 
is a full-width front porch with a shed roof supported by simple square columns.  The 
main entry is to the side.  Although Town records indicate an 1890 construction date, this 
house is not shown on any historic maps.  The property was part of the M. R. Phillips 
property to the north in 1916 and the house may have been constructed somewhat later. 

 

 
 
133.  W. H. Carter Home                  SCTM #341-1-55 
          ca. 1910                                                                                        4 Walnut Avenue 
 
This house is similar to 27 Walker Avenue.  It is a two-story side-gabled home accented 
with a front-facing, centered cross gable and one engaged, gabled dormer on each side. 
The main entry is located off center, below the front cross gable.  A hipped roof front 
porch supported by square Doric-style columns that sit on a shingled half-wall extends 
the full width of the house.  The home is clad with cedar shingle siding and an asphalt 
roof with a small off-center brick chimney rising through the roof ridge.  The two-over-
two and six-over-one double-hung windows throughout appear to be original.  This house 
is not shown on the 1902 or earlier historic maps, but is depicted on the 1916 map as 
owned by W. H. Carter, consistent with 1910 construction shown in Town records. 
 

 



East Quogue Hamlet Heritage Area Report 87 

134.  House                                SCTM #341-1-56 
         ca. 1920                                                                                        6 Walnut Avenue 
 
This home is a two-story vernacular building with an external southern brick chimney.  It 
is a side-gabled home with a wrap-around porch on the front and sides supported by 
square Doric-style columns resting on a shingled half wall. It is clad with painted 
asbestos shingles, an asphalt shingle roof, and six-over-six divided light windows.  The 
home’s livable area has been extended into the wrap-around porch.  This house is not 
shown on any of the historic maps and was part of the Mrs. C. Walker property to the 
west in 1916.  This is consistent with the 1920 construction date shown in Town records. 
 

 
 
135.  W. H Carter Home                              SCTM #341-1-40 
         ca. 1900                                                                                           7 Walnut Avenue 
 
This home is a two-story front-gable Queen Anne-style structure with a variety of 
architectural features typically associated with the Queen Anne style.  It has a wrap-
around porch with turned posts, decorative brackets and railings, cross gables, and a 
central brick chimney.  It is clad with cedar shingle siding, an asphalt roof, and double-
hung windows with six-over-six divided light patterns.  This house is shown on 1902 and 
1916 historic maps as belonging to W. H. Carter, but is not depicted on the 1873 map.  
This is consistent with the 1900 construction date shown in Town records. 
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136.  House                                           SCTM #341-1-39 
         ca. 1930s                                                                                         9 Walnut Avenue 
 
This home is a one-story structure with a jerkin-head side-gabled roof.  It is clad with 
cedar shingles and has double-hung windows with divided lights throughout.  A simple 
front porch with hipped roof and square posts, now screened-in and heavily screened with 
foliage, greets passersby. The home rests on a concrete foundation and represents a 
common vernacular building style of the 1930s. 
 

 
 
137.  T. Phillips Home                       SCTM #341-1-60 
          ca. 1910                                                                                        10 Walnut Avenue 
 
This house is very similar to those at 7 Weesuck Avenue, and 17, 20, and 24 Walnut 
Avenue.  Its primary volume is a one-story hipped-roof form that has been added onto 
with other one-story additions and a shed dormer.  It is clad with cedar shingles and an 
asphalt roof.  Its original windows appear to have been replaced; the house underwent 
renovation in 2011.  The house is not shown on the 1902 or earlier historic maps, but is 
depicted on the 1916 map as owned by T. Phillips.  Although Town records show a 
construction date of 1920, the historic maps suggest a circa 1910 construction date.   
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138. H. E. Terrell Home                              SCTM #341-1-38 
        ca. 1910                                                                                          11 Walnut Avenue 
 
This home is a two-story front-gable Queen Anne-style structure with a variety of 
architectural features typically associated with the Queen Anne style.  It has a wrap-
around porch with square posts, a two-story cross gable with a hipped roof, and a central 
brick chimney.  It is clad with cedar shingle siding, an asphalt roof, and double-hung 
windows with two-over-two divided-light patterns.  The gable end window appears to be 
a replacement.  This home is not depicted on the 1902 or earlier historic maps, but is 
shown on the 1916 map as owned by H. E. Terrell.  Although Town records show a 
construction date of 1900, a circa 1910 construction date is indicated by historic maps. 
 

 
 
139.  Alexander Glendinning Home                                SCTM #341-1-37 
         ca. 1910                                                                                         13 Walnut Avenue 
 
This house appears to be a late Queen Anne-style structure that has undergone many 
changes since its original construction.  The northern half, with a two-story engaged 
octagonal tower, was built first, then later expanded to the south with a side-gabled one-
and-a-half story addition with engaged dormers and a front porch, accented by a gabled 
entry with tree-of-life ornamentation.  All of the original windows, siding, and roofing 
have been replaced.  This house is not shown on the 1902 or earlier historic maps, but is 
depicted on the 1916 as owned by A. Glendinning. This is consistent with the 1910 
construction date shown in Town records.   
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140.  Edwards-Downs Home                       SCTM #341-1-36 
         ca. 1900                                                                                         15 Walnut Avenue 
 
This home is a two-story front-gabled vernacular home with additions to the north and 
rear.  It is clad in painted asbestos shingling and an asphalt roof.  Many of the original 
windows exist and are coupled with wood storm panels.  In 1902 this home was owned 
by L. Edwards and by 1916 was associated with Mrs. Ida Downs.  For more information 
about Mrs. Downs, refer to resource #71 at 556 Montauk Highway.  Mrs. Ida Downs is 
reported to have given this house to her foster son, Ferdinand J. Downs, when he married 
Catherine Quinland from Manorville.  Their first son, Edward W. Downs, was born in the 
house in 1906 or 1907.  Although Town records indicate a 1915 construction date, circa 
1900 construction is indicated by the historic maps. 
 

 
 

141. House                                           SCTM #341-1-35 
        ca. 1920                                                                                          17 Walnut Avenue 
 
This house is very similar to those at 7 Weesuck Avenue, and 10, 20, and 24 Walnut 
Avenue.  Its primary volume is a one-story hipped-roof form with a brick chimney, and 
has been added onto with other one-story additions and a hipped dormer.  It has an 
integral front porch and is clad with cedar shingles, an asphalt roof, and double hung 
windows throughout.  This house is not shown on the 1916 or earlier historic maps, 
which is consistent with the 1920 construction date in Town records.  
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142.  Griffin-B. Raynor Home                       SCTM #341-1-69 
         ca. late 1800s/1776?                                                                     18 Walnut Avenue 
 
This home, one of the oldest in the hamlet, retains a very high level of integrity.  The 
northern volume is original, with a later one-story southern extension.  The main volume 
is a side-gabled three-bay wide half-cape, with a central brick chimney, original windows 
with divided light patterns, and side entry.  It is clad with cedar shingle siding with large 
exposure, and an asphalt roof.  This home is shown on the 1902 historic map as owned by 
Mrs. M. Griffin and in 1916 by B. Raynor; it is not shown on the 1873 or earlier maps.  
The Town records indicate a 1776 construction date, which may be true if the original 
structure, which appears to be a “half house”, was moved from another location.  
 

 
 

143.  House                                           SCTM #341-1-70 
          ca. 1935                                                                                        20 Walnut Avenue 
 
This house is very similar to those at 7 Weesuck Avenue, and 10, 17, and 24 Walnut 
Avenue.  Its primary volume is a one-story hipped-roof form with other one-story 
additions.  It is clad with cedar shingles and an asphalt roof; a brick chimney rises 
through the center of the roof.  Most of the windows throughout appear to have been 
replaced.  This house is not shown on either of the 1902 or 1916 historic maps; the 1935 
construction date in Town records appears correct. 
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144.  Mrs. Jackson Home                            SCTM #341-1-33 
         ca. 1910                                                                                         21 Walnut Avenue 
 
This home is a late vernacular Queen Anne-style structure with a two-story front-facing 
gable with north and south two-story cross gables to the rear.  The front wrap-around 
porch has been enclosed and some of the windows have been changed while others 
remain original.  The gable end attic vent is also likely a later modification.  The house is 
clad with painted cedar shingles and wide trim along the eaves with exposed rafter ends.  
This house is not shown on the 1902 historic map, but is shown as the home of Mrs. 
Jackson in 1916.  The 1910 construction date in Town records appears accurate. 
 

 
 

145.  House                                           SCTM #341-1-72 
         ca. 1935                                                                                         22 Walnut Avenue 
 
This Neoclassical style home has an unusual mansard-like hipped roof originally clad 
with cedar shingles.  A brick chimney rises from the peak. Gabled and pedimented 
dormers and gabled triangular attic vents punctuate the distinctive roof, which rests on a 
one-story masonry base which is parged.  A full-width flat roof front porch with balcony 
above has been enclosed.  The home has been renovated although many original details, 
such as the profiled brackets along the eaves and many windows, remain intact.  An 
accessory garage to the rear of the property matches the main house in style.  This house 
is not shown on either of the 1902 or 1916 historic maps.  
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146.  D. Terrell Home                 SCTM #900-341-1-73 
         ca. 1910                                                                                         24 Walnut Avenue 
 
This house is very similar to those at 7 Weesuck Avenue, and 10, 17, and 20 Walnut 
Avenue.  Its primary volume is a one-story hipped-roof form that has been added onto 
with other one-story additions and a side-facing shed-roof dormer.  It is clad with painted 
cedar shingles and an asphalt roof, and a brick chimney rises through the roof peak.  Most 
of the windows appear to be replaced.  This house is not shown on the 1902 historic map 
but is depicted on the 1916 map as the home of D. Terrell.  A circa 1910 construction 
date is indicated. 
 

 
 

147.  W. Hallowell Home (Site)                    SCTM #900-341-1-74 
          ca. 1910                                                                                        26 Walnut Avenue 
 
This house was very similar to those at 7 Weesuck Av., and 10, 17, 20, and 24 Walnut 
Av. Its primary volume was a one-story hipped-roof form with exposed rafter ends.  It 
was clad with painted shingles and an asphalt roof.  Many of the windows appeared to be 
original, while others had been replaced.  The house had been added onto over the years 
with rear one-story additions, a front-facing shed-roof dormer, and an enclosed porch.  
This house was not shown on the 1902 or earlier historic maps, but is depicted on the 
1916 map as owned by W. Hallowell.  A construction date of approximately 1910 is 
indicated.  This house was demolished in 2013.  
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148.  M. E. Carter Home                            SCTM #342-1-33 
         ca. 1905                                                                                         4 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This house appears to have originally been a one-story hipped-roof structure with later 
one and two-story additions that were generally in keeping with the home’s original 
character.  It is clad with cedar shingle siding, an asphalt roof, and double-hung windows 
with six-over-one and two-over-two divided-light patterns equipped with wood storm 
panels.  This house is not shown on the 1902 or earlier historic maps, but is depicted on 
the 1916 map as owned by M. E. Carter.  A 1905 construction date, as indicated on Town 
records, appears accurate. 
 

 
 

149.  House                                          SCTM #342-1-36 
          ca. 1910                                                                                        6 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This side-gabled one-story structure appears to have been an original accessory building 
to 8 Weesuck Avenue that was later converted into a residence.  The structure is not 
shown on the 1902 or earlier historic maps, but is depicted to the rear of the M. E. Carter 
residence on the 1916 map.  It is clad with painted shingle siding and an asphalt roof and 
has been extensively enlarged.  This photo is of an added portion – the original structure 
is behind this volume.  Although Town records indicate a 1900 construction date, the 
map information suggests circa 1910 construction. 
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150. H. G. Carter Home                        SCTM #342-1-29.001 
        ca. 1913                                                                                          7 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This house is very similar to those at 10, 17, 20, 24, and 26 Walnut Avenue.  Its primary 
volume is a one-story hipped-roof form with exposed rafter ends.  It is clad with painted 
cedar shingles and an asphalt roof.  Many of the windows appear to be original.  The 
house has an enclosed front porch and a central brick chimney.  This house is not shown 
on the 1902 or earlier historic maps, but is depicted as owned by H. G. Carter on the 1916 
map, which is consistent with the 1913 construction date shown on Town records. 
 

 
 

151. M. E. Carter Home                              SCTM #342-1-37 
         ca. 1890                                                                                         8 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This home is a two-story Shingle-style structure with a primary front-facing cross gable 
and two-story cross gables to the north and south.  A wrap-around asymmetrical porch 
supported by square columns graces the off-center main entrance.  It is clad with painted 
cedar shingles with sporadic rows of scallop patterning.  The roof is clad with asphalt 
shingles and the home has two-over-two double-hung original windows throughout, some 
of which are paired with louvered shutters with decorative cut-outs.  This house is shown 
on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps as owned by M. E. Carter, but is not depicted on the 
1873 map.  The 1890 construction date shown on Town records appears accurate. 
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152.  Jacob Carter II Home                     SCTM #342-1-28.001 
         ca. early to mid-1800s                                                                 9 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This well-maintained one-and-a-half story side-gable home has a front gabled dormer 
with a tri-part half-round window with multi-light divisions.  The roof allows for a full-
width front porch to be tucked underneath and is supported by square columns with 
decorative brackets.  A brick chimney rises off-center through the roof ridge.  The home 
is clad with painted cedar shingles and an asphalt roof and has double-hung windows 
throughout with nine and six-over-two divided-light patterns.  This house is shown on the 
1902 and 1916 historic maps as owned by G. P. Carter, but is not depicted on the 1873 
map.  It is reported that this house was moved to this location prior to 1852 and was 
originally owned by Jacob Carter (1802-1877) and his wife, Eliza Robinson Carter 
(1807-1891), who married in 1824 (See page 13.).  The 1790 construction date shown on 
Town records appears inaccurate; an early to mid-1800s construction date is more likely.  
 

 
 

153.  John Reeve Home                                SCTM #342-1-38 
          ca. 1900                                                                                      10 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This is a two-story house with a front-facing gambrel; the house is clad with cedar 
shingle siding and an asphalt roof.  There is a full-width front porch with turned columns 
and a hipped roof.  The home has been added onto and changed extensively.  This house 
is depicted on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps as owned by John Reeve, but is not 
depicted on the 1873 map.  The construction date of 1900 shown on Town records 
appears accurate. 
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154.  Adam Yost Home                               SCTM #342-1-39 
         ca. 1900                                                                                       12 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This two-story Queen Anne-style home has front and side-facing cross gables and a 
corner tower.  The front gable is accented with a half-round window, and a two-story bay 
projection decorates the south-facing cross gable.  Many of the two-over-two double-
hung windows throughout appear to be original.  The wrap-around front porch has been 
enclosed.  The house is clad with painted cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof.  This 
house is depicted on the 1902 and 1916 historic maps as owned by Adam Yost, but is not 
depicted on the 1873 map.  The construction date of 1900 shown on Town records 
appears accurate.  This home is reported to have been purchased by John and Sophie 
Lucas about 1940. 
 

 
 
155.  House                                           SCTM #342-1-43 
         ca. 1925                                                                                      14 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This two-story home is Colonial Revival in style.  It has a side-facing gambrel roof with a 
long shed dormer and a brick chimney rising through the roof slightly off center.  It is 
clad with cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof, has a one-story addition to one side, 
with a hipped roof and six-over-one double-hung windows throughout.  This house is not 
depicted on the 1916 or earlier historic maps and, therefore, the 1925 construction date 
shown in Town records appears accurate.  This house is reported to have been the home 
of Oscar Reeve at one time.  
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156.  House                                             SCTM #342-1-4 
         ca. 1930                                                                                       19 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This is a two-story vernacular folk farmhouse-style structure with a front-facing gable 
and rear cross gables.  It has a screened-in wrap-around front porch supported by turned 
columns.  It is clad with cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof.  The double-hung 
windows throughout appear to be original.  This house is not depicted on the 1916 or 
earlier historic maps and, therefore, the 1930 construction date shown in Town records 
may be accurate.  This house is located in what was formerly the yard of the Pine View 
Hotel in 1902 and later the Puchmuller Inn.  It was reportedly moved to this location 
from the southeast corner of Main Street and Walnut Avenue.  A.C. Hulse and family are 
reported to have been the owners of this home in 1940.  
 

 
 

157.  House                                           SCTM #342-1-46 
         ca. 1930                                                                                       20 Weesuck Avenue 
 
This quaint bungalow-style summer home is one-story with a side gable and a later front 
porch with a gabled roof and screened enclosure.  The paired six-over-one double-hung 
windows appear to be original, although some modification to the home’s trim work has 
been made.  It is clad with cedar shingle siding and an asphalt roof and has a side external 
brick chimney.  This house is not depicted on the 1916 or earlier historic maps and, 
therefore, the 1930 construction date shown in Town records appears accurate.  This 
house is located in what was formerly the yard of the G. W. Rockefeller property in the 
early 1900s. 
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158.  Former H. H. Sanford Barn                      SCTM #360-1-6.001 
          ca. 1890                                                                                      7 West End Avenue 
 
This structure, which is not readily visible from the street, appears to have once been an 
accessory barn on the H. H. Sanford property (depicted on 1902 and 1916 maps) that was 
later converted into a residence.  It is not shown on the 1873 map and, therefore, the 1890 
construction date shown in Town records appears accurate.  It is one and a half stories 
with clapboard cladding on the second story and cedar shingle siding with 12-inch 
exposure on the first.  There is a Colonial Style bracketed gable roof over the main entry, 
and two dormers, one engaged within the roof top and the other independent.  The 
windows throughout do not appear original.  The side gabled structure, clad with asphalt 
shingle roofing, has a shed extension to the rear. 
 

  
 
159. W. D. Benjamin Home                         SCTM #360-1-16 
         ca. 1890/1873                                                                            29 West End Avenue 
 
This two-story vernacular home is clad in cedar shingles with a pointed arch double-hung 
window in its front-facing gable with two-over-two divided lights.  Other windows 
appear to have been replaced.  The principal front three-bay wide volume joins with a 
north-west gable with shed dormers and an integral porch.  To the south, a second floor 
porch with shed roof takes full advantage of the nearby water view.  The main entry is a 
Colonial Revival style arched porch with gabled roof.  A long accessory garage/barn 
exists at the rear of the property.  This house is shown on the 1902 and 1916 historic 
maps as owned by W. D. Benjamin, but is not shown on the 1873 map.  The construction 
dates shown in Town records (above) appear accurate.  This property is reported to have 
been the McCormack Duck Farm in the 1900s and was owned by the Terry family circa 
1940.  Duck eggs were hatched here to supply Eastport and Moriches area duck farms. 
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160. Cottage and Outbuildings                                                              SCTM #340-3-34 
         ca. 1930                                                                                     35 West Side Avenue 
 
This property includes a cottage, garage and shed, all of which are reported to have been 
constructed in 1930.  The cottage is one story with an enclosed front porch, asbestos 
shingle siding, and asphalt-shingled roof.  This home is not depicted on the 1902 or 1916 
historic maps and, therefore, the 1930 construction date shown in Town records appears 
accurate.  Owners are reported to have included Frank Davis in 1968 and Allyn F. 
Jackson thereafter. 
 

 
 
161. N. S. Jackson Home                                                  SCTM #340-3-31 
         ca. 1907                                                                                     41 West Side Avenue 
 
This home is a two-story front gable farmhouse reportedly constructed in 1907.  Some of 
the windows on the sides and rear appear to be original.  The wrap-around front porch 
and first floor addition to the south are later modifications.  This home is not depicted on 
the 1902 historic map, but is shown on the 1916 map as owned by N. S. Jackson.  
Therefore, the 1907 construction date shown in Town records appears accurate.  Owners 
are reported to have included Hazel and Wendell Jackson in 1959 and Allyn F. Jackson 
thereafter. 
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162. Mrs. D. Jones Home                             SCTM #340-3-30 
     ca. 1907                                                                                         43 West Side Avenue 
 
This home is a two-story front gable farmhouse that has both original and replacement 
windows.  It has a wrap-around front porch supported by square columns and a one-story 
addition to the rear.  The gable end window is a later modification.  The home is clad 
with cedar shingle siding and asphalt roofing.  This home is not depicted on the 1902 
historic map, but is shown on the 1916 map as owned by Mrs. D. Jones.  Therefore, the 
1907 construction date shown in Town records appears accurate. 
 

 
 
163.  House                                    SCTM #344-1-41.002 
         ca. 1928                                                                                7 Willow Shade Avenue 
 
This bungalow-style summer home is one-and-a-half stories with a side gable roof 
accented with decorative brackets on the side gable ends.  It has a center entry and an 
enclosed front porch.  It is clad with painted wood shingles and an asphalt roof.  Many of 
its windows appear to be original.  
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164.  House                                    SCTM #900-344-1-36 
         ca. 1940                                                                              23 Willow Shade Avenue 
 
This large Colonial Revival-style Dutch gambrel home with water views has been 
enlarged over the years with additions to the front and rear.  Its original two-story volume 
with gambrel roof has a long northeast-facing shed dormer.  Double-hung windows and 
brick chimneys exist throughout. It is finished with white shingle siding and an asphalt 
roof. Since 1999 it has been used as a monastery, occupied by the Sisters of Charity, of 
Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada. 
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HISTORIC MAPS 



 
 

Excerpt from MAP OF SOUTHAMPTON TOWN, 1797 (Copy courtesy of the Suffolk County Historical Society) 
 
Following the close of the American Revolution, the newly-established authorities required surveys of our new nation.  In 1784, Simeon De Witt accepted an offer to 
become the first Surveyor General of New York State and undertook to make a detailed and accurate map of the entire state.  In preparation for this map, the New York 
State Legislature passed a law in 1796 requiring that each township prepare a detailed map of its own area and send it to the Surveyor General’s Office.  The above map 
is the result of that legislative action and was used in the creation of De Witt’s 1802 Map of New York State. 
 
The 1797 map of Southampton Town is one of a few surviving manuscript maps of this era and is maintained at the New York State Archives.  These maps were 
crudely hand-drawn on large sheets of paper and were not produced by expert map makers.  Note that much of the writing is upside down or at odd angles.  However, 
much detailed information is provided about local features, boundaries and settlements.  Although this map is not elegant, it is important as it is probably the first 
official map of our entire Township. 
 
At this time, the hamlet of East Quogue was known as Fourth Neck and the depiction of two buildings on what appears to be Montauk Highway suggests some 
settlement of the hamlet center.  Old Country Road (also known as South Country Road) is also depicted.  No other roads or settlement are indicated at this time.    



 



 
 
Excerpt from 1873 ATLAS OF LONG ISLAND, NEW YORK, Published in 1873 by 

Beers, Comstock & Cline 
 
The first post-Civil War atlas of Long Island was prepared by F. W. Beers and published by 
Beers, Comstock & Cline, located at 36 Vesey Street, New York, in 1873.  Frederick W. Beers 
came from a map-publishing family that produced a large number of atlases of various East Coast 
communities between 1865 and 1900.  Frederick W. Beers lived in Brooklyn and headed the map 
division of the Brooklyn Office of Public Records for 35 years.  He was also involved in 
publishing over 80 atlases, some under his own name and some under the name of his cousin, J. B. 
Beers.  
 
By 1873 the former name of Fourth Neck was no longer in use and the central portion of the 
hamlet was known as Atlanticville, while the northern area was known as Oakville.  Two streets 
(Bay and Walker) had been opened towards Shinnecock Bay and increased development was 
apparent. 



1902 Maps 
 
The following maps showing East Quogue and vicinity are excerpted from the ATLAS OF LONG ISLAND, NEW YORK, published 
in 1902 by E. Belcher Hyde, Brooklyn.  By the late 1800s and early 1900s, the Long Island map publishing business was largely 
undertaken by Hyde and Company, which later became known as the E. Belcher Hyde Map Company.  The E. Belcher Hyde Map 
Company, like the Beers Map Company, published property maps and atlases in several formats so as to appeal to a wider audience.  
However, their individual maps were often produced in smaller folding style suitable for more general use than earlier wall-size 
county maps.  The Hyde atlases were very detailed and, like the Beers maps, contained no advertising.  However, the limited areas of 
coverage of the individual plates made them less popular than the earlier Beers atlases.  The maps in the Hyde atlases often show 
property boundaries, and provided significant amounts of detailed information, including the locations, numbers and types of 
buildings on individual properties, the number of stories of each building, the type of building construction, and road names. Note the 
high level of detail for each property - imagine the amount of time required to obtain all of this information in the field and hand-draft 
it onto each plate!  
 



Detailed View of Central East Quogue: 
 

 



 
 

View of Eastern East Quogue, Pine Neck Area 
 
 

 
 



 
 

View of Northwestern East Quogue, Oakville Area 
 
 
 

 





 
 

1916 Maps 
 
The following three maps showing East Quogue and vicinity are excerpted from the ATLAS OF 
THE OCEAN SHORE OF SUFFOLK COUNTY, LI (EASTERLY SECTION) Eastport to Montauk 
Point  published in 1916 by E. Belcher Hyde, 97 Liberty Street, Brooklyn.  The E. Belcher Hyde 
Map Company continued publishing maps of the Long Island area for several decades.  Although 
the maps in the Hyde atlases are often more limited in area than the earlier Beers maps, they 
provided more significant amounts of detailed information, including property boundaries, the 
locations, numbers and types of buildings on individual properties, the number of stories of each 
building,  and the type of building construction.  
 
Detailed View of Central East Quogue: 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
View of Eastern East Quogue, Pine Neck Area 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
View of Northwestern East Quogue, Oakville Area 

 

 



 
 

June 30, 1938 Aerial Photograph 
 
The image below is an aerial photograph showing East Quogue and vicinity taken in June 1938 
shortly before the 1938 Hurricane.  
 

 



ADDITIONAL SUPPORTING INFORMATION 





































































































 


	Cover.pdf
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
	Introduction
	Resourcestext_a_
	Resourcestext_b_
	Resourcestext_c_
	Resourcestext_d_
	Inventorytab
	Inventorylist
	Inventorymap
	Historicmapstab
	1797map
	1858map
	1873map
	1902EQmaps
	1906map
	1916maps
	1938EQaerial
	Addinfotab
	supportinginfo
	endcover

